
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners
September 25, 2014


 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on September 25, 2014 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Patrick Stough, Assistant County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order 


Chairman Brown called the September 25, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 6:59 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown stated that he wanted to move the Acceptance of the Agenda toward the beginning of the meeting
so that the singing of the National Anthem would immediately follow the Pledge of Allegiance.  He then moved to
accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed 4-0-1 with Commissioner McCarty being absent from the vote.


Commissioner McCarty entered the meeting at this time.


Invocation by Chairman Steve Brown


Chairman Brown offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #5







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 2


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the 200th Anniversary of the United States’ National Anthem: The Star-Spangled
Banner.


Chairman Brown introduced the McIntosh High School Girls Chorus and asked them to sing the National
Anthem immediately after the Pledge of Allegiance.  The McIntosh High School Girls Chorus sang the
National Anthem.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


2. Proclamation of September 26, 2014 as “Tina and Bobby Cannon Day in Fayette County.”


Chairman Brown read the proclamation of September 26, 2014 as “Tina and Bobby Cannon Day in Fayette
County.”  Mr. and Mrs. Cannon spoke about what it was like to be in competition, and they spoke about how
to obtain the barbeque sauce.  It was pointed out that proceeds of the sales were provided to local
charities.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


3. Recognition of Fayette County’s Emergency Medical Technicians for going above and beyond the
call of duty in their service to Fayette County citizens Mark and Becky Smith.


Chairman Brown introduced Mr. Mark Smith and Mrs. Becky Smith to the audience.  Deputy Fire Chief Tom
Bartlett spoke about the work the first responders did in going above and beyond the call of duty in their
service to Fayette County’s citizens.  Mr. and Mrs. Smith also spoke about the events that led to their
contacts with the Emergency Medical Technicians, and they thanked the first responders for everything
they did in helping the family.  Captain Doug Morris, Lt. Charles Duff, Lt. Doug Stinnette, Lt. Steve Teague,
and Emergency Medical Technicians Kevin Jones, Robbie Moore, and Jared Cooper were recognized and
thanked by the Board, Chief David Scarbrough, and Deputy Chief Tom Bartlett.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Recognition of Fayette FACTOR for its work with the Faith-based Disaster Network (Team 11)
through the Functional Needs Taskforce.


Commissioner Barlow recognized Mrs. Becky Smith and Fayette FACTOR for its work with the Faith-based
Disaster Network (Team 11) through the Functional Needs Taskforce.  Mrs. Smith spoke about the Faith
Division -based Disaster Network, and she credited Division Chief and Emergency Management Agency
Pete Nelms for initiating the program.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Recognition of the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce and the graduates of Leadership Fayette-
Class of 2014.


Commissioner Barlow recognized the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce and the graduates of
Leadership Fayette- Class of 2014.  Ms. Virginia Gibbs, President of the Fayette County Chamber of
Commerce, spoke about the work and contributions of the current and previous Leadership Fayette
graduates.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 3


PUBLIC HEARING:


There were no Public Hearing items on the Agenda.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 6-8.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion. 
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation for a final supplemental budget adjustment for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2014, and approval to close completed Capital Improvement Projects within the
Capital Improvement Projects program and to move those funds to contingency.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 6,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation’s
Nondiscrimination Agreement and Title VI Assurance documents that are required for Fayette
County’s Public Works’ Title VI Program.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,”
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of the September 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business items on the Agenda.


NEW BUSINESS:


9. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Ms. Irene Cheyne to the
Region Six Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional Planning
Board for a three-year term beginning October 1, 2014 and expiring September 30, 2017.


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Ms. Irene
Cheyne to the Region Six Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional
Planning Board for a three-year term beginning October 1, 2014 and expiring September 30, 2017. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  


Chairman Brown spoke about the number of highly qualified candidates who applied for placement on the
Region Six Mental Health Board.  He pointed out that Ms. Cheyne was appointed last year to fill an
unexpired term, and during her short time on the Board has managed to be appointed Chairman of the
Region Six Mental Health Board.  He said she is leading Region Six into a new direction, and he thanked
her for her work. 


The motion to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Ms. Irene Cheyne to the
Region Six Mental Health, Developmental Disabilities, and Addictive Diseases Regional Planning Board for
a three-year term beginning October 1, 2014 and expiring September 30, 2017 passed unanimously.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 4


10. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #910- Sports Lighting to Donald Camp, Inc.,
in the amount of $257,000.00, for lighting at McCurry Park’s Soccer Field #4 and Softball Field #6,
and approval to utilize $132,000.00 from the McCurry Park Contingency Fund for this purpose.


Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee briefed the Board on staff’s request.  Mrs. Godbee stated that
in 2003, staff began looking at its sports lighting, and it was determined that there were issues that needed
to be addressed with poles and low-light levels.  She explained that a plan was implemented that would
refurbish the lights at the county’s parks as needed.  She told the Board that this plan was continuing for
the Fiscal Year 2015 budget and that needs for McCurry Park’s Soccer Field #4 and Softball Field #6 were
recommended for improvement.  She spoke about how Bid #910 was sent to multiple vendors and why
Donald Camp, Incorporated was selected.  Mrs. Godbee asked the Board to approve awarding Bid #910 to
Donald Camp, Incorporated, and she asked for authorization to utilize $132,000.00 from the McCurry Park
Contingency Fund for this purpose.


County Administrator Steve Rapson added that the contract with Donald Camp, Incorporated would include
language for yearly validation the light levels at the fields over the course of the next twenty-five years;
ensuring that the light levels “are where they need to be.”


Commissioner Barlow asked Mrs. Godbee if she supported this recommendation.  Mrs. Godbee replied that
she did.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff’s recommendation to award Bid #910- Sports Lighting to
Donald Camp, Inc., in the amount of $257,000.00, for lighting at McCurry Park’s Soccer Field #4 and
Softball Field #6, and to utilize $132,000.00 from the McCurry Park Contingency Fund for this purpose. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 
Copies of the request and contract, identified as “Attachment 9,” follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.


11. Consideration of the September 6, 2014 Special Called Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner Barlow was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Board of Commissioners’ Republican Party Special Called
Meeting Minutes from September 6, 2014.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner Barlow abstaining from the vote.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Roy Bishop: Mr. Bishop, a resident on Westbridge Road, said that the County had a good Board and good
administration.  He said his problem has been ongoing since the 2003 and 2004 Board of Commissioners sat in
office, but that it appeared that the effort to correct his problem has come to a halt.  He told the Board that County
Administrator Steve Rapson and County Engineer Phil Mallon visited his property about two months ago but that
nothing has been done since then.  He told of some ongoing issues at this property and continuing difficulties he is
experiencing.  He hoped that something could get started since he has not heard anything since June 26, 2014.  He
said he wanted to get the outside of his house cleaned up and he wanted to fix his front yard.  Chairman Brown
clarified that Mr. Bishop’s front yard was messed up, that there was a septic line issue, that there was a driveway
issue, and that there was damage to the house that needs to be resolved.  Mr. Bishop agreed that those were the
majority of the problems and he stated that he wanted to begin addressing the problems.







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 5


Keenan Anderson: Mr. Anderson, a resident of Beverly Manor subdivision along Gingercake Road, delivered a
letter of great concern that he, his friends, his neighbors, and the county have about the clearing of trees in the
vicinity of Gingercake Road.  He explained that Beverly Manor subdivision is more than forty years old, and it has
always been known for its beauty due to the landscaping of its properties, and that it is a heavily forested
neighborhood.  He told the Board that there has been a rash of logging in and around the residential neighborhoods. 
He said this activity belongs in tree farms or managed forest services, but is not appropriate for a subdivision.  He
estimated that within one mile of his property approximately 2,000 trees have been harvested within the past year. 
He said the owners and operators of the equipment are going door to door to cut trees for free.  He stated that one
homeowner was told that they would clean up the property after the tree cutting was completed, however, there is no
evidence that the properties are being cleaned up once the trees are down.  Mr. Anderson stated that there is
significant evidence that the yards are being piled high with debris.  He told the Board that an area that was once a
naturalized area with trees is now unsightly in many cases and full of tree stumps.  He said rumor has it that some of
the tree owners were told they would receive money for the sale of the trees, but after the cutters left, all the
homeowners were left with was a yard full of stumps and debris.  He informed the Board that after work was
completed at one property that the workers abandoned their rental equipment requiring weeks for the residents of
the neighborhood to have the equipment removed.  He said one property is not fully cleaned, but one of the
residents is working very hard to clean his property.  He said the other property owner has done nothing to clean his
property for over a year.  He said the neighbors have to put up with excessive noise from tractor trailers, chain saws,
and heavy equipment and they are living with the debris that makes it appear that a large storm has struck or
possibly a war zone.  He said the debris piles are about forty feet high and are about 100x100 square feet.  Mr.
Anderson said he believed in the rights of property owners, and that property owners have the right to remove trees
from properties, but that there should be laws that protect other property owners from this type of destruction.  He
pointed out that Peachtree City and Fayetteville have ordinances in place providing protections for residents.  He
said the logging companies have no names on their trucks, no one knows where they come from, they do not have
business cards, and that their bonding and insurance qualifications are questionable.  He thought the property
owners should be protected from these types of operations, and he thought the County would benefit from more
oversight.  A copy of Mr. Anderson’s letter, identified as “Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.
   
Gail Noren: Ms. Noren spoke for approximately seven minutes about her concerns with logging occurring around
her property.  She asked if the logging company was able to solicit business by going door to door asking
homeowners if they wanted their trees removed.  She stated that the neighbors were up in arms about another
logging truck coming to the area due to the destruction cause by previous loggers.  She told the Board that a tree fell
on a neighbor’s property, and she spoke about the potential damages that could be cause by a tree falling in a shed
or a house since the loggers are probably not licensed, bonded, or insured.  Ms. Noren stated that the property
owners who are allowing logging on their properties are not intending to cause damage or disruption to the
properties or to their neighbor’s properties and that it was unfortunate that many homeowners had “called out the
posse” as strongly as they did.  She reminded everyone that they wanted to live peacefully with their neighbors, and
that those who hire logging companies need to fully know the risks involved.  Ms. Noren mentioned that some of the
loggers were presenting written agreements stating that they would clean up the property after the logging was
done, but to date no logging company has cleaned up the land.  She asked if there was recourse for that failure, and
Chairman Brown replied that the recourse would be with the court system.  Ms. Noren then spoke about Georgia’s
Forestry Laws, explaining that they allow for trees to be cut down but preventing stumps from being removed, and
she spoke about the challenges involved with that type of law.  She concluded by asking the Board to take quick
action on this matter of logging in Fayette County.







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 6


Mr. Hugh and Mrs. Shirley Tolbert: Mr. and Mrs. Tolbert spoke for approximately nine minutes on problems
associated with his neighbors cutting trees in their neighborhood. Mr. Tolbert stated that his neighbor clear-cut
approximately two acres of property about one year ago, but that the property was still in disarray.  He thanked
Commissioner Oddo for responding to his call on this matter several days before and he asked the Board why the
problems had been allowed to get so far out of hand.  He told the Board that his property is downstream from most
of the properties that have been logged, and that, due to the logging, he has stormwater pouring into his property
that otherwise would be deterred.  He stated that when there is a thunderstorm his property is instantly flash-flooded
due to the stormwater runoff coming into his property.  He mentioned that this stormwater runoff is flooding his
backyard, is running through his front yard, and is filling his ditch.  He acknowledged that the Georgia Forestry Laws
had to be kept, but he asked how the City of Peachtree City, Fayetteville, and Lamar County could have laws that
would protect property owners from these types of problems while Fayette County does not.  He asked the Board to
direct the County Attorney to look into the matter in order to enact enforcement provisions.  Mrs. Tolbert stated that
her family had invested thousands of dollars into fixing their yard, but that their investment is no longer any good due
to the runoff.  She asked who would pay for the damages to their property.  Mr. Tolbert added that the neighbors
have not put up an adequate silt fence, and he reminded the Board that state law says property cannot be altered
that would affect water flow to neighbors; explaining that the law includes cutting trees; landscaping, and other
actions.  Mr. Tolbert stated that the County should not be working on privately-owned dams and instead should be
focusing on county issues.  He closed by saying if logging could take place in his neighborhood then it could take
place in every neighborhood in unincorporated Fayette County, and he asked the Board to help.


Elizabeth Gearhart: Mrs. Gearhart stated that she and her family moved to Fayette County ten years ago.  She said
she loves her property and trees, and she cut down fourteen dead trees this year.  She said she had the stumps
grinded, and it cost $2,000.00.  She thought people were getting cheap since they did not want to hire a tree service. 
She said they see a logging company coming in and offering a great deal, but the end result is that the properties
are being deforested.  She said that every day she drives by the properties along Gingercake Road she is horrified. 
She stated that the clear cutting has created environmental problems including rats and snakes living in the debris. 
She said when she walks the neighborhood with her husband it looks like Bosnia where her husband served in the
military.  She pointed out that this clear cutting was driving property values down, and she asked the Board to do
something about the logging in the area. 


Linda Rosshirt: Mrs. Rosshirt spoke about how several trees fell on her fence due to her neighbor doing logging on
his property.  She said she had the fence repaired.  She said her neighbor gave her the contact information of the
owner of the logging company, but after several contacts the logging company still has not paid for the damages. 
She provided information to the Board of Commissioners on how to contact the logging company.


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner thanked the Board for recognizing his marriage last month, and he spoke about how
much it meant to him and his wife.  He said it was a great idea that the Board had implemented in recognizing its
people.  Mr. Gardner also spoke about his concerns with how the rezoning process and vote went at the July 24,
2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  He said he wanted the Board to think about this matter.  He said the Board
had done a good job in a lot of areas, but he asked the Board to consider how it has taken two-acre lots and reduced
them to one-acre lots.  He suggested that there was inconsistency on the Board since the Board turned down similar
rezoning requests on August 28, 2014.  Mr. Gardner also mentioned that Lester Road is dangerous since it has
deep shoulders at the edge of the road.  He asked the Board to take efforts to enhance the safety on Lester Road. 
Mr. Gardner then spoke about how he was not able to get additional asphalt from the County for his driveway, and
how it would have made everybody happy if he could have had the extra asphalt in his driveway.  He closed his
comments saying some directors of different departments are not doing their job as they should.







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 7


Sal Benigno: Mr. Benigno asked if a temporary moratorium could be imposed on logging in his neighborhood until
the County could review the matter and adopt an ordinance pertaining to logging.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Response to Public Comments: County Administrator Steve Rapson responded to some of the comments made
during Public Comment.  He first addressed Mr. Gardner’s comments saying that he would talk to the Public Works
Division to see about getting barrels along Lester Road.  He also stated that the asphalt Mr. Gardner mentioned was
actually an asphalt byproduct that, while it may have looked like asphalt, was not asphalt.  Mr. Rapson then replied
to Mr. Bishop’s comments by stating there was a lot involved with the Westbridge Road project and the concerns he
addressed.  He said there was an active condemnation in process, and that there were sanitation system issues, a
ditch, a waterline and a bridge and bad slopes involved in the project.  He stated that staff was working on a solution
to the situation and that he would get back to Mr. Bishop.  Mr. Rapson added that the County was aware of the
logging problem and that it came to the County’s attention on August 11, 2014 when the first owner had logging work
done on his property and four citations were issued.  He stated that this was a difficult issue since the County does
not have jurisdiction since the jurisdiction falls under the Georgia Forestry Commission, or GFC.  He stated that the
County has been in contact with the GFC, and he said staff would have a meeting on Wednesday, October 1, 2014
at 1:30 p.m. on the matter.  He added that he had provided the County Attorney with state laws pertaining to the
issue of logging, and those laws could be put into place that would give the County some teeth in enforcing the
ordinance.  He reported that Code Enforcement had been to the site earlier in the day where the logging is
occurring, and he reported that there was an altercation between Code Enforcement and the loggers.  He stated that
the Sheriff’s Office responded to the altercation and one of the loggers was actually arrested.  He said the County
had hit this matter pretty hard, but it does not solve all the problems.  He stated that, ultimately, the individual owners
of properties make the decisions on if logging can occur, and any problems arising from those decisions become
civil matters.  He explained that the County typically does not know about these matters until someone calls the
County.  He told the Board that there is not an occupational tax or a license required by the County, however, there
is a license required by the Georgia Forestry Commission.  He said the loggers cannot go door to door since that is
solicitation.  He stated that if the area that is being timbered is less than an acre, then it does not impact the county’s
Environmental Management for enforcement.  He mentioned that if the area being logged is greater than an acre
than the work would be governed by state law.  He explained that the county has defined the problem and that it is
working on solutions that could be considered.  He added that moratoriums cannot be imposed since it is a matter
that the County does not regulate, so there was not a whole lot that could be done until ordinances were put into
place.  He informed the Board that this meeting would likely result in a late Agenda item or an addition to the
October 7, 2014 Agenda being placed on the dais in regards to what could be enacted.  Mr. Rapson stated that the
County is not working on any private dams, and that it is working on dams that it actually has ownership rights.  Mr.
Rapson then answered questions from the audience.  He stated that according to the Georgia Forestry Commission,
stumps do not have to be removed and that those issues would be a civil matter in the courts.  He stated that the
County has five pending court cases based on citations that have been issued.  He said those cases are against
homeowners who have allowed this type of activity to occur, and not against preventing the activity.  He hoped that a
process or ordinance could be worked up that would give teeth to the County; preventing these types of issues.


Board of Commissioners Meeting to be Held on Tuesday, October 7, 2014: County Administrator Steve Rapson
reminded the Board that the next Board of Commissioners meeting would be held on Tuesday, October 7, 2014 at
7:00 p.m.  He stated that it was being held on a Tuesday instead of its customary Thursday due to training that the
Board would have to attend in Athens, requiring the meeting to be rescheduled.







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 8


Selection Committee for the Ethics Board: County Administrator Steve Rapson informed the Board that there was
an upcoming vacancy on the Fayette County Ethics Board, and that the vacancy had already been advertised.  The
Board appointed Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner Ognio to the Selection Committee for the Ethics Board.


Consent Agenda Item #6: County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that Consent Agenda Item #6 was glossed
over earlier in the meeting, but he wanted everyone to know that the County finished the year one million dollars
better than what was forecasted at the April 2014 Retreat.  He thought it was good for the Board to praise the efforts
of department heads, individual employees, and Constitutional Officers when everything is headed in the right
direction.  He stated the efforts said a lot about how the County was being financially managed.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


There was no Attorney’s Report given.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow addressed those who spoke about the logging issues in their
neighborhood.  He suggested that they take videos of the problems, while standing on public property, for law
enforcement purposes.  Commissioner Barlow also spoke about a newspaper article written by Fayette County


News reporter Josh Akeman, and he spoke about the Diva Half Marathon was held in Peachtree City several weeks
ago, and he spoke about the huge success of the event in Peachtree City.  He said some of the people who were
recognized with Leadership Fayette contributed to the success of the Diva Half Marathon.  Commissioner Barlow
stated that after he read the article from Mr. Akeman his memory was jogged about another article he read from The


Citizen reporter Monroe Roark that read: “County officials are frustrated that they have not been able to come to a
reciprocal agreement with Peachtree City concerning the use of golf carts in both jurisdictions.”  Commissioner
Barlow invited Mr. Akeman and Mr. Roark to contact him on these matters since he is not one of the county officials
that is frustrated by the City of Peachtree City.  He said he was not elected to the Peachtree City Council and has
not been empowered to make decisions for the city.  He said he was elected to make decisions for Fayette County. 
He said that the city leadership would not get criticism from him, and he did not think the County should charge for
the Peachtree City citizens having their golf carts coming into unincorporated Fayette County.  He stated that
Fayette County is the family and it has five siblings: Tyrone, Peachtree City, Fayetteville, Brooks, and Woolsey.  He
said if Peachtree City has a problem then the family will take care of her whether it agrees all the time or not.  He
wanted the people of Peachtree City to know that he considers them part of the family and he will help any way he
can.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo thanked everyone for coming to the meeting.  He thanked the Tolbert’s
for contacting him, and he said the Commissioners were still Commissioners in between the meetings.  He
mentioned that Fayette County has a great staff, and that the staff has been working on this situation.  He stated that
this matter had not been ignored, and it was acknowledged that the Tolbert’s had a lake in their yard.  He spoke
about how his day started with Commissioner Barlow in Smyrna, Georgia since they both were taking an economics
course.  He said this course was one of four courses in economics, and he hoped that the lessons learned from the
courses would be of benefit to Fayette County.  


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty stated that he had a meeting with a homeowner’s group made up
of about seventy people, and he asked those among the group to raise their hand if they had been to a Board of
Commissioners meeting.  He stated that about four hands went up.  Commissioner McCarty said the people were
complaining that they did not know what was going on in the County, and he informed them that they have to get







Minutes
September 25, 2014
Page Number 9


involved.  He stated that the Board does not know what is going on with the people unless the people interact with
the Commissioners and the Board.  He said everyone who meets with him gets his phone number and he is
available around the clock.  Commissioner McCarty stated that once problems are brought to the Board then it has a
path and a method to rectify the problems.  He thanked everyone in the audience for coming to the meeting.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio stated that anyone who did not go to the tractor show at the Minter
Farm missed a tremendous experience.  He said it was free to attend although there were some costs for programs
and food.  He said it was great to have citizens like that in Fayette County who puts on this event.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown apologized to Mr. Bishop for the problems that he spoke about and for staff not
communicating with him.  He spoke about the problems Mr. Bishop raised and he said he would help in any way
possible.  Chairman Brown added that property owners are liable for problems incurred by those who are brought to
properties to work who are not licensed, insured, or bonded.  He said property owners needed to be aware of this
responsibility and potential liability.  He said if they drop a tree on a neighbor’s house, kill someone, or get injured on
the property, the homeowner would pay a hefty cost that would far exceed bringing in a company that is bonded and
insured.  He also spoke about the problems with logging, and he spoke about the power of the forestry lobby in the
State of Georgia.  He suggested that the citizens should contact their local legislative delegation and tell the
delegation of the problems created through logging.  He added that the Tolbert’s needed to notify Fayette County’s
Environmental Management Department as silting issues are occurring.  He said the Environmental Management
Department could work to ensure the property is brought back into compliance.  Chairman Brown also spoke about
the work on County dams saying the County was not investing time and money.  He appreciated the citizens for
coming to the meeting and voicing their opinions.  He stated that the Board listens to what is being said, and that
more people have come to them after something was acted on, and agreed that the Board did what it said it would
do.  He hoped the citizens would come back as well and agree that the Board did what it said it would do.  He asked
the citizens to hold the Board accountable for its actions, and he reminded them of the Resolution that is posted at
the back door that made promises to the citizens on the first day the Board took office.  He said the Board was
obligated to live up to the promises and he asked the citizens to hold the Board accountable for those promises.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


There was no Executive Session Meeting.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Oddo moved to adjourn the September 25, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The September 25, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 8:39 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                  Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 7th day of October 2014.


___________________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
















AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


October 7, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner David Barlow
Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PROCLAMATION /RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of October 2014 as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month in
Fayette County."


PUBLIC HEARING:


CONSENT AGENDA:


2. Approval of staff's recommendation to reduce the county's participation in
the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, including the
outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and the associated
interest-rate swap agreement, by the estimated amount of $271,000.00
which has been determined to be "excess funds."


3. Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award Bid #908-
Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fiscal Year 2015 to the low
bidder, Shockley Plumbing, in an amount not to exceed $489,556.25, and
approval to transfer funds from the Renewal & Extension Fund to the
Water System's Capital Improvement Project Fund.


4. Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow informational
material pertaining to Citizen Self Serve and a flyer from The Frederick
Brown Jr. Amphitheater to be be inserted in customers' water bills, and
approval of staff's request for general authorization for similar material to
be inserted into water bills if approved by the Water Committee including
the Administrator, Chairman, and Attorney.


5. Approval of the September 25, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting
Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


6. Consideration of the disposition of tax refunds in the amount of $543.55.
This item was tabled at the September 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners
meeting.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
September 25, 2014
Page Number 2


NEW BUSINESS:


7. Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-13, amending the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances by revising Subsection (d) in Section 10-42 of Article III of Chapter 10;
removing the City of Peachtree City from a Reciprocal Agreement with Fayette County.


8. Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-19 to reduce the school-zone speed limit
along Redwine Road to 25 miles-per-hour, and to authorize the Fayette County Sheriff's Office to seek
certification from the State of Georgia to officially lower the speed limit.


9. Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation of the Georgia Military College waterline
agreement, and authorization for the County to pay a $438,530.00 variance cost, utilizing the Water
System's Renewal & Extension Fund, should the County determine that a larger diameter water line be
installed for future county purposes.


10. Consideration of staff's recommendation to approve the Addendum to Agreement between Fayette County
and Mallett Consulting, Inc., dated August 1, 2005, for the East Fayetteville Bypass (SPLOST Project R-8).


11. Discussion with staff pertaining to timber harvesting in unincorporated Fayette County.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Proclamation of October 2014 as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month in Fayette County."


The problem of domestic violence is not confined to any group or groups of people, but crosses all economic, racial, gender, educational, 


religious, and societal barriers, and is sustained by societal indifference.  This violence ranges from slaps, hits, physical altercations, and 


sometimes results in death and murder.  Children are adversely affected by watching the violence acted out of their parent, and they too 


can find themselves endangered. 


 


The Promise Place offers a place of refuge and support for those who are affected by domestic violence. 


 


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners will proclaim the month of October as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month in Fayette 


County" in an effort to bring light to problem and to show victims that there is a place to go for help.


Proclamation of October 2014 as "Domestic Violence Awareness Month in Fayette County."


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 Proclamation/Recognition



fjones

Typewritten Text

Proclamation/Recognition #1







FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 


               


Promise Place – Domestic Violence Month 
               


 


A PROCLAMATION 
 


WHEREAS,  Promise Place was established in 1987 to provide assistance to victims of domestic 


violence and their children in both Fayette County and the Griffin Judicial Circuit; and  


WHEREAS, Promise Place offers emergency shelter, a 24-hour crisis hotline, crisis intervention, 


safety planning, legal advocacy, weekly support groups, children programs, emergency 


needs assistance, and community education services to Fayette, Spalding, Pike and 


Upson Counties; and  


WHEREAS, In addition to serving over 3,000 victims, including children, of domestic violence each 


year, Promise Place has reached over 2,500 students through their Teen Dating Violence 


Prevention Program that is taught in 9th grade Health classes; and  


WHEREAS, The problem of domestic violence is not confined to any group or groups of people, but 
crosses all economic, racial, gender, educational, religious, and societal barriers, and is 
sustained by societal indifference; and 


 


WHEREAS,  Unhealthy relationships can start early and last a lifetime with approximately 9% of high 
school students report being hit, slapped, or physically hurt on purpose by a boyfriend or 
girlfriend; and 


 


WHEREAS, Victims should have help to find the compassion, comfort, and healing they need, and 
domestic abusers should be punished to the full extent of the law; and 


 


WHEREAS, Victims of violence should have access to medical and legal services, counseling, 
transitional housing, and other supportive services so that they can escape the cycle of 
abuse; 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, in recognition of the 
important work done by Promise Place in regards to domestic violence programs and victims, do hereby 


proclaim the month of October 2014 as Domestic Violence Awareness Month and in so doing 
we urge all citizens to actively participate in the scheduled activities and programs sponsored by Promise Place 
to work towards the elimination of domestic violence. 


 


So proclaimed this 7th day of October 2014, 


  


 


 


    _________  


  STEVE BROWN, Chairman   


  





		Commissioners- Domestic Viole...eness Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Domestic Violence Awareness Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-13, amending the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances by revising Subsection (d) in Section 10-42 of Article III of Chapter 10; removing the City of Peachtree City from a Reciprocal 


Agreement with Fayette County.


Chairman Brown would like revisions to Fayette County's Motorized Carts Ordinance based off Peachtree City's recent decision to not 


enter into a reciprocal  agreement with the County in establishing universal golf cart accessibility within Fayette County.  The Motorized 


Carts Ordinance was passed on March 27, 2014 after Fayette County's interns spent the summer of 2013 studying the issue and 


providing suggestions on how to implement such a motorized golf cart program. 


 


A copy of the letter from the City of Peachtree City advising that there is no reciprocal agreement between the city and Fayette County, 


and a red-lined version of the Ordinance 2014-13, removing Peachtree City from the Reciprocal Agreement from the Motorized Golf Cart 


Ordinance, is attached as backup.


Approval of Chairman Steve Brown’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-13, amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances 


by revising Subsection (d) in Section 10-42 of Article III of Chapter 10; removing the City of Peachtree City from a Reciprocal Agreement 


with Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, March 27, 2014


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #7











 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2014-13 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO REVISE PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO MOTORIZED 


CARTS REGISTRATION/TRANSFER REQUIREMENTS FOR MOTORIZED CARTS; 


TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 


TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 


SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO MOTORIZED CARTS (ARTICLE III OF CHAPTER 10), BE 


AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By deleting Article III, pertaining to Motorized Carts, of Chapter 10, in its 


entirety, and by replacing it  Subsection (d) of Section 10-42, pertaining to 


“Registration/transfer requirements”,  with a new of Article III in of Chapter 10, 


to be numbered and read as presented in Exhibit “A”, which is attached hereto 


and made a part hereof by this reference in its entirety, and by replacing it with a 


new Subsection (d) in Section 10-42 of Article III of Chapter 10, to be numbered 


and read as follows: 







 
 2 


(d) Reciprocal agreement.  A reciprocal agreement exists between the County and the 


City of Fayetteville and the Town of Tyrone (the “Cities”).  The County will 


honor/recognize permits issued from the Cities in the unincorporated portion of the 


County.  Residents of the Cities will be afforded the same privileges as those permit 


holders who are residents of the unincorporated portion of the County and all sections of 


this article will apply to the residents of the Cities as well.  Notwithstanding anything 


contained herein to the contrary, the minimum age for operating a motorized cart or low-


speed motor vehicle in the unincorporated portion of the County is 12 years old with an 


accompanying adult and 15 years old with a valid learner’s permit. 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 3. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 4. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 







 
 3 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


SO ENACTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2014. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


County Attorney 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 1 of 7 


CHAPTER 10.   MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC. 


ARTICLE III.   MOTORIZED CARTS. 
 


 


Sec. 10-41. Findings; definition. 
 


(a) Findings.  The board of commissioners finds that certain public streets located within the 


unincorporated county are designed and constructed so as to safely permit the use thereof by 


regular vehicular traffic and also the driving thereon of motorized carts. The board of 


commissioners further finds that recreation paths are designed and constructed so as to safely 


permit travel thereon by motorized carts. 


 


(b) Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall 


have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 


different meaning: 


 


 All-terrain vehicle means any motorized vehicle designed for off-road use which is 


equipped with three or more low pressure tires and with a seat to be straddled by the operator and 


with handlebars for steering control. 


 


 Authorized streets means all such streets which have been authorized for motorized cart 


travel and are on file with the planning and zoning department. The list of authorized streets is 


subject to amendment from time to time by the board of commissioners. 


 


 Automobile means a passenger vehicle primarily designed to legally travel on the 


highways of this state that usually has an engine capable of propelling the vehicle over 35 miles 


per hour. 


 


 County means Fayette County, Georgia. 


 


 Dealer means a person engaged in the business of buying, selling, or exchanging vehicles 


who has an established place of business in this state. 


 


 Electric bicycle means a device with two or three wheels which has a saddle and fully 


operative pedals for human propulsion and also has an electric motor.  For such a device to be 


considered an electric assisted bicycle, it shall meet the requirements of the Federal Motor 


Vehicle Safety Standards, as set forth in 49 C.F.R. Section 571, et seq., and shall operate in such 


a manner that the electric motor disengages or ceases to function when the brakes are applied.  


The electric motor in an electric assisted bicycle shall: 


 


(1) Have a power output of not more than 1,000 watts; 
 


(2) Be incapable of propelling the device at a speed of more than 20 miles per hour 


on level ground; and 


 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 2 of 7 


(3) Be incapable of further increasing the speed of the device when human power 


alone is used to propel the device at or more than 20 miles per hour. 


 


 Electric personal assistive mobility device or EPAMD means a self-balancing, two non-


tandem wheeled device designed to transport only one person and having an electric propulsion 


system with average power of 750 watts (one horsepower) and a maximum speed of less than 20 


miles per hour on a paved level surface when powered solely by such propulsion system and 


ridden by an operator who weighs 170 pounds. 


 


 Gross weight means the weight of a vehicle without load plus the weight of any load 


thereon. 


 


 Low-speed motor vehicle or LSMV means any four-wheeled electric vehicle whose top 


speed attainable in one mile is greater than 20 miles per hour but not greater than 25 miles per 


hour on a paved level surface and which is manufactured in compliance with those federal motor 


vehicle safety standards for low-speed vehicles set forth in 49 C.F.R. Section 571.500 and in 


effect on January 1, 2001. 


 


 Moped means a motor driven cycle equipped with two or three wheels, with or without 


foot pedals to permit muscular propulsion, and an independent power source providing a 


maximum of two brake horsepower.  If a combustion engine is used, the maximum piston or 


rotor displacement shall be 3.05 cubic inches (50 cubic centimeters) regardless of the number of 


chambers in such power source.  The power source shall be capable of propelling the vehicle, 


unassisted, at a speed not to exceed 30 miles per hour (48.28 kilometers per hour) on level road 


surface and shall be equipped with a power drive system that functions directly or automatically 


only, not requiring clutching or shifting by the operator after the drive system is engaged. 


 


 Motorcycle means every motor vehicle having a seat or saddle for the use of the rider and 


designed to travel on not more than three wheels in contact with the ground, but excluding a 


tractor, all-terrain vehicle, dirt bike, and moped. 


 


 Motor driven cycle means every motorcycle, including every motor scooter, with a motor 


which produces not to exceed five brake horsepower, every bicycle with a motor attached, and 


every moped. 


 


 Motorized cart means every motor vehicle having no less than three wheels and an 


unladen weight of 1,300 pounds or less and which cannot operate at more than 20 miles per hour. 


Within this article, the terms "motorized cart," "golf cart" and "cart" shall have the same 


meanings. 


 


 Motorized play vehicle means a coaster, scooter, pocket bike, any other alternatively 


fueled device, or other motorized vehicle that is self-propelled by a motor engine, gas or electric, 


and is not otherwise defined in this code as a "motorized cart", "low speed motor vehicle 


(LSMV)" "motor vehicle", "motorcycle", "electric bicycle", motorized skateboard", "electric 


personal assistive mobility device" or "motorized wheelchair". 


 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 3 of 7 


 Motorized skateboard or motorized scooter means a self-propelled device that has a 


motor, gas or electric, a deck upon which a person may ride, not equipped with a seat, and at 


least two tandem wheels in contact with the ground and which is not otherwise defined in this 


Code as a "motor vehicle," "motorcycle," "motorized play vehicle," "electric personal assistive 


mobility device" or "motorized wheelchair." 


 


 Motorized wheelchair means a self-propelled wheelchair that is used by a physically 


disabled person for mobility. 


 


 Pocket motorcycle or pocket bike means a two-wheeled vehicle other than a motor 


vehicle, bicycle with helper motor or a motorized scooter and which is propelled by an internal 


combustion engine, electric motor or other mechanical means, is capable of carrying a rider 


and/or passenger at a speed in excess of 20 miles per hour, and is designed to replicate the 


general appearance of a motorcycle, regardless of the scale of the replication. 


 


 Recreation path means a paved area of generally six feet or more in width that is 


designed or intended for multi-use such as pedestrians, bicyclists, motorized carts, or any other 


approved use. 


 


 Sidewalk means a paved area of generally five feet in width or less that is designed or 


intended for the use of pedestrian traffic only. 


 


Sec. 10-42.  Registration/transfer requirements. 


 


(a) Required.  It shall be the duty of every owner of an electric or gasoline-powered 


motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle that is operated over the designated streets, paved 


recreational paths or sidewalks of the unincorporated portion of the County to register the vehicle 


with the County within ten business days of the date of purchase.  Proof of ownership listing the 


vehicle must be presented.  This is to be accomplished at the County Administrative Complex 


where two numerical decals will be issued for each vehicle registered.  A record of each vehicle 


so registered will be completed.  The registration will record the name and address of the owner, 


vehicle manufacturer, model, serial number or VIN, and color. 


 


 (b) Registration fee.  The registration fee for motorized carts or low-speed motor vehicles 


owned by residents of the unincorporated portion of the County shall be $12.00, and the 


registration shall be effective until the next regular registration period. Registration periods shall 


occur every five years, beginning in 2011.  If the cart is not registered within ten business days of 


purchase, a $20.00 penalty will be applied in addition to the registration fee; and the cart shall be 
considered an unregistered cart after the ten business-day period.  In addition, those persons 


wishing to register a vehicle designed for a disabled person, presentation of medical verification 


of a disability is required.  An annotation will be placed on the registration document.  A decal 


will be issued and must be displayed when utilizing parking designated for the disabled.  Upon 


termination of the disability, this decal must be removed and the vehicle's registration form 


updated. 


 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 4 of 7 


(c) Revocation.  The registration of gasoline-powered motorized carts will be revoked if the 


motorized cart is not in compliance with subsection (f) of this section and a new registration will 


be required upon compliance with subsection (f) of this section. 


 


(d) Reciprocal agreement.  A reciprocal agreement exists between the County and the City of 


Fayetteville, the City of Peachtree City and the Town of Tyrone (the “Cities”).  The County will 


honor/recognize permits issued from the Cities in the unincorporated portion of the County.  


Residents of the Cities will be afforded the same privileges as those permit holders who are 


residents of the unincorporated portion of the County and all sections of this article will apply to 


the residents of the Cities as well.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, 


the minimum age for operating a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle in the 


unincorporated portion of the County is 12 years old with an accompanying adult and 15 years 


old with a valid learner’s permit. 


 


(e) Transfer of ownership.  Upon the sale of a golf cart or low-speed motor vehicle to another 


person who will operate the vehicle over the streets or paved recreation paths of the 


unincorporated portion of the County, the registration must be transferred to the new owner 


within ten business days of the change in ownership.  Transfer cost will be $5.00.  If the transfer 


registration is not accomplished within ten business days, a $5.00 penalty shall be applied for 


each month the registration has not been updated.  This additional fee shall be capped at $30.00 


and will be in addition to the transfer fee. 


 


(f) Gasoline-powered motorized carts. 


 


(1) Every gasoline-powered motorized cart shall at all times be equipped with an 


exhaust system in good working order and in constant operation, meeting the 


following specifications: 


 


(a) The exhaust system shall include the piping leading from the flange of the 


exhaust manifold to, and including, the muffler(s) and exhaust pipe(s) or 


include any and all parts specified by the manufacturer. 


 


(b) The exhaust system and its elements shall be securely fastened, including 


the consideration of missing or broken brackets or hangers. 


 


(c) The engine and power mechanism of every gasoline-powered motorized 


cart shall be so equipped, adjusted and tuned, as to prevent the escape of 


excessive smoke or fumes. 


 


(2) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any gasoline-powered motorized cart to 


operate, or permit the operation of such cart on which any device controlling or 


abating atmospheric emissions, which is placed on a cart by the manufacturer, has 


been altered, rendered unserviceable or removed. 


 


(g) Rental motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles.  Motorized cart and low-speed 


motor vehicle dealers and distributors, as well as other commercial establishments, may rent golf 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 5 of 7 


carts and low-speed motor vehicles to the public for use on the streets and paved recreation 


paths.  Each such establishment renting motorized carts or low-speed motor vehicles shall be 


required to register each and shall maintain a written record of each person renting a motorized 


cart or low-speed motor vehicle.  Renters shall be required to furnish positive identification and 


shall be furnished a copy of this article to read.  Each renter must be at least 16 years of age and 


possess a valid driver's license.  Registration fees and transfer fees shall be the same as those in 


subsections (a) and (b) of this section.  Motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles for 


temporary use by the County during special events are exempt from the requirements of this 


subsection. 


 


(h) Age, number of registrants limited.  Only those persons 18 years of age or older may 


register a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle.  Registration may be in one person's name 


only and the registration form must be signed by that person. 


 


Sec. 10-43. Operating regulations. 
 


(a) Any person who possesses a valid motor vehicle driver's license may operate a motorized 


cart or low-speed motor vehicle on the recreation paths and authorized streets of the 


unincorporated portion of the County. 


 


(b) Any person who possesses a valid motor vehicle learner's permit and is at least fifteen 


(15) years of age may operate a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle on the recreation 


paths and authorized streets of the unincorporated portion of the County. 


 


(c) No person less than fifteen (15) years of age shall be permitted to operate a motorized 


cart or low-speed motor vehicle on the recreation paths and authorized streets of the 


unincorporated portion of the County under any circumstances.  Exception: Those persons who 


are 12 years of age or older may drive a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle on designated 


streets and paved recreation paths of the unincorporated portion of the County if they are 


accompanied in the front seat by a person at least 18 years of age who holds a valid motor 


vehicle driver's license. 


 


(d) All operators of motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles shall abide by all traffic 


regulations applicable to vehicular traffic when using the recreation paths and authorized streets 


of the unincorporated portion of the County. Where recreation paths exist, they must be used in 


preference to parallel authorized streets. 


 


(e) Motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles shall not be operated on sidewalks at any 


time. 


 


(f) Motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles may be operated over authorized streets or 


recreation paths of the unincorporated portion of the County only during daylight hours, unless 


such motorized carts or low-speed motor vehicles are equipped with functional headlights and 


taillights. 


 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 6 of 7 


(g) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle to 


operate, or permit the operation of, such cart over the recreation paths or authorized streets of the 


unincorporated portion of the County in violation of this article. 


 


Sec. 10-44. Recreation path users prohibited uses. 
 


 Recreation paths shall not be used by: 


 


(1) Automobiles and trucks, except authorized maintenance vehicles; 
 


(2) Motorcycles; 
 


(3) Street and trail motorized bikes (not to include electric bicycles) or vehicles, 


including, but not limited to, all-terrain vehicles, commonly known as ATVs; 
 


(4) Minibikes and mopeds; 
 


(5) Horses, mules or donkeys 


 


(6) Go-carts. 


 


(7) Motorized play vehicles; 
 


(8) Unregistered electric motorized carts; and 


 


(9) Unregistered gasoline-powered motorized carts. 


 


Sec. 10-45. Hazardous activities and special rules. 
 


 No individual or group shall engage in hazardous activities on the recreation paths or 


authorized streets. Such hazardous activities include, but are not limited to, the following: 


 


(1) Racing of any kind, except for special events approved by the County. 


 


(2) Blocking of public access, except for special events approved by the County. 


 


(3) Pedestrians, skaters and permitted vehicles shall not loiter or park on recreation 


path bridges or in underpasses. 


 


(4) Pedestrians should be given due consideration and reasonable right-of-way by 


other users of the recreation paths to ensure safe passage. 


 


(5) An audible warning shall be given by operators of motorized carts and low-speed 


motor vehicles and other users of the recreation paths, such as bicyclists and 


skaters, when approaching pedestrians from the rear. 


 







SEPTEMBER 2014 REVISION Page 7 of 7 


(6) All laws and ordinances relative to alcohol and the use thereof, including open 


container laws, apply to the recreation paths. 


 


Sec. 10-46. Liability. 
 


 Each person using the recreation paths is liable for his or her own actions. 


 


Sec. 10-47. Penalties. 
 


 Any person who violates the terms of this article shall be punished as provided in section 


1-8 of the county code. 





		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-13 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-13 Backup

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-13 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-13 Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-13 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-13 Backup

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-05 Backup

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-05 Backup - Copy

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-05 Backup

		Attachment 16- Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request with Backup

		Attachment 16- Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request with Backup

		Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request File

		Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Backup



		Attachment 16a- Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Addendum Information

		1

		Microsoft Word - Golf Cart Ordinance - With revisions (final)



		Attachment 16b

		Attachment 16c



		201405210831



		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-05 Backup

		Attachment 16- Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request with Backup

		Attachment 16- Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request with Backup

		Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request File

		Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Backup



		Attachment 16a- Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Addendum Information

		1

		Microsoft Word - Golf Cart Ordinance - With revisions (final)



		Attachment 16b

		Attachment 16c



		201405210831



		Supplemental Document 7- Peachtree City's Denial of Reciprocal Agreement on Golf Cart Allowance

		Steve Brown Letter- Mayor Vanessa Fleisch

		Golf Cart Ordinance Reply Ltr to Fyt Cty - Rapson





		Commissioners- Revised Ordinance 2014-05- Red-Line-a

		Commissioners- Revised Ordinacne 2014-05- Red-Line -b



		Golf Carts (Removal of PTC Reciprocity) - Ordinance-Red-Line A-1

		Red-Lined B- Revised Ordinance-c
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-19 to reduce the school-zone speed limit along Redwine Road to 25 


miles-per-hour, and to authorize the Fayette County Sheriff's Office to seek certification from the State of Georgia to officially lower the 


speed limit.


Chairman Steve Brown is seeking Board approval to adopt Resolution 2014-19 in order to reduce the school-zone speed limit along 


Redwine Road to 25 miles-per-hour.   


 


This recommendation is supported by Public Works Director Phil Mallon, the Fayette County Board of Education, and the Fayette County 


Sheriff's Office. The request is for the speed limit to be lowered prior to the new golf cart infrastructure being constructed. 


 


Upon the Board's approval of Resolution 2014-19, the Fayette County Sheriff's Office will be authorized to seek official certification from 


the State of Georgia to lower the speed limit. 


 


Resolution 2014-19 to be provided at meeting.  Maps of the area under consideration are attached as Exhibit B.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Resolution 2014-19 to reduce the school-zone speed limit along Redwine Road to 25 miles-


per-hour, and to authorize the Fayette County Sheriff's Office to seek certification from the State of Georgia to officially lower the speed 


limit.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #8







Fayette County BOC
µOctober 7, 2014


Redwine Road School Zone


Exhibit B - For Resolution 2014-19


EXHIBIT BEXHIBIT BEXHIBIT B







Fayette County BOC
µOctober 7, 2014


Redwine Road School Zone


Exhibit B - For Resolution 2014-19


School Complex
SR 74


Redwine R
oad


R
o
b
in


so
n
 R


o
a
d


Panther Path


School Zone


School Zone Sign


Speed Limit Sign


Monarch Drive


Lodge T
ra


il





		Commissioners- Speed Limit Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Speed Limit Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Discussion with staff pertaining to timber harvesting in unincorporated Fayette County.


Several Fayette County citizens spoke to the Board of Commissioners during the Board of Commissioners meeting held on September 


25, 2014 about timber harvesting occurring on and near residential property in the vicinity of Ginger cake Road.   


 


Fayette County staff met with officials of the Georgia Forestry Commission on October 1, 2014 to discuss the issues involved with timber 


harvesting in residential neighborhoods and on residential properties in order to find an appropriate solution to the concerns.  Staff will 


present potential solutions to the Board in an effort to address the concerns. 


 


A "Notice of Timber Harvesting Activity", provided from the Georgia Forestry Commission, is attached as supporting material.  The State 


of Georgia will allow Fayette County to utilize this form if authorized by the Board of Commissioners.  Currently, there is no authorization 


from the Board.  


 


Due to the immediacy of this issue and time constraints, additional supporting material will be provided to the Board of Commissioners 


during the meeting for possible consideration.


Staff is seeking Board direction pertaining to timber harvesting issues in Fayette County, and will seek official Board action on potential 


solutions to these concerns.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #11







NOTICE OF TIMBER HARVESTING ACTIVITY 
Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 12-6-24 


Georgia Forestry Commission 
 
County:        Timber Sale Acreage:       Date Submitted:       
 
 Check Appropriate:          Landowner                   Timber Seller                    Legal Representative  
Name:       
Address:       
City:       State:       Zip code:       
Daytime Phone No.:                 
 
Timber Buyer Information      Logger/Harvester Information     
Name:       Name:       
Business Name:       Business Name:       
Business Address:       Business Address:       
City:       State & Zip:       City:       State & Zip:       
Business Phone No.:       Business Phone No.:       
Night/Emergency Phone No.:       Night/Emergency Phone No.:       
 
Timber Sale Type:  Lump Sum   Unit/Load   Owner Harvest   
 
Please attach/draw a map to identify (1) tract location, and (2) point(s) of ingress & egress from public road(s).  
Include identified points of reference, such as streams, public roads, right of ways, landmarks, map/parcel 
number, distances, etc., to ensure county acknowledgement and understanding of location. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Form 12-6-24 
Georgia Forestry Commission 
August 2002 


 





		Commissioners- Timber Harvesting Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Timber Harvesting Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Parrott


Approval of staff's recommendation to reduce the county's participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, 
including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement, by the estimated 
amount of $271,000.00 which has been determined to be "excess funds."


In 1998, the County took a $5,000,000.00 participation stake in the Georgia Local Government Series 1998A certificates of participation.  
Proceeds were used to finance the County's share of the Georgia Municipal Association lease pool agreement.  An interest rate swap 
was simultaneously entered into with J.P. Morgan, with a $5,000,000.00 basis for swap calculations. 
 
The lease pool agreement stipulates that all funds - principal and interest - must be used every five years.  Any balance remaining in the 
lease pool's Equipment Fund longer than that is declared "excess funds." The County has reduced its participation four times previously, 
for a total reduction of $4,128,000.00.  
 
The County has been notified that Bank of New York estimates an additional $217,000.00 will become excess on December 1, 2014.  
This reduction will decrease our liability to $655,000.00.


Approval of staff's recommendation to reduce the County's participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, 
including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement, by the estimated 
amount of $271,000 which has been determined to be "excess funds."


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, May 9, 2013


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentTuesday, October 7, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Public Works Public Works Director Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's recommendation to approve the Addendum to Agreement between Fayette County and Mallett Consulting, Inc., 


dated August 1, 2005, for the East Fayetteville Bypass (SPLOST Project R-8).


In August 2005, Fayette County and Mallett Consulting entered into an Agreement for professional services to support multiple 


transportation projects funded by the 2005 to 2010 Special Purpose Local Open Sales Tax (SPLOST).  One of the projects included in 


this Agreement is the East Fayetteville Bypass Segments I and II (R-8).   


 


Three items are included as background to this agenda request: 


 


1.  A September 29, 2014 letter from Mallett Consulting documenting the new Fee Schedule and scope of work  


     for project R-8 (Exhibit A);  


2.  Proposed Map of the East Fayetteville Bypass (SPLOST R-8)( Exhibit B); and 


3.  A copy of the original Agreement for Professional Services (Exhibit B). 


 


The East Fayetteville Bypass contains five components: South Jeff Davis Intersection; New Road Construction; McDonough Road 


Bridge; Morning Creek Bridge; and Corinth Road Curve Realignment.   The proposed addendum includes the South Jeff Davis 


intersection and new road construction.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to approve the Addendum to Agreement between Fayette County and Mallett Consulting, Inc., dated 


August 1, 2005, for the East Fayetteville Bypass (SPLOST Project R-8).


The proposed fees for professional services are less than originally planned and adequate funds are available from the SPLOST project 


account R-8.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Design of the two bridges will be competitively bid and staff may do the design for the curve realignment  in-house.


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #10







EXHIBIT AEXHIBIT AT A



































East Fayetteville Bypass


(SPLOST R-8)


µ


1 - Intersection Improvements at South


     Jeff Davis, Northbridge, County 


     Line, and Inman Roads


5 - Corinth Road Curve


     Realignment


2 - New Road Construction


     from County Line Court to


     SR 54 (approx. 2.8 miles)


3 - New Bridge over


     unnamed tributary


4 - New Bridge over


     Morning Creek


0 0.65 1.3 1.950.325
Miles


Clayton County


State Highways


County and City Roads


Streams


Project Alignment (approx. 6.2 miles)


Work/Improvement Areas


SR 54


S
R


 8
5


S
R


 3
1


4


S
R


 9
2


McDonough Road


EXHIBIT BEXHIBIT BEXHIBIT B







EXHIBIT CEXHIBIT CT C

























































































































		Public Works- EFB Contract Am... Agenda Request File

		Public Works- EFB Contract Amendment Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Tax Assessor Joel T. Benton


Consideration of the disposition of tax refunds in the amount of $543.55.  This item was tabled at the September 11, 2014 Board of 


Commissioners meeting.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests. 


 


The Board of Assessors has recommended a refund for Ms. Westmoreland in the amount of $543.55 based on Commercial valuation.  


However, the property, although designated as "Commercial" should have been designated as "Office-Institutional", or O-I.   


 


Fayette County's Attorney recommends approval of the refund request based on an O-I designation and valuation; lowering the refund by 


approximately 8% to $497.82.


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office, in the aggregate amount of $497.82


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


No


Yes


Old BusinessTuesday, October 7, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #6







Refund Requests BOC 10.07.2014
Taxpayer Year(s) Property Basis for Request Recommendation Reason Amount Per Year Total


Slaton, Michael                                                         


Parcel #07-27  -001                                                               


2013                                             


2012                     


2011


Residential


On June 25, 2014 taxpayer 


came in to notify us that our 


records reflected wrong acerage 


for their property.


(8 Acres)


Deny


Prior legal descrip ion on taxpayer's 


Quitclaim Deed was incorrect. New survey 


showing 4.43 acres provided by taxpayer to 


correct acreage was never legally recored 


with county clerk. Therefore, it is 


recommended that a refund for prior years be 


denied. The property record has been 


corrected to 4.43 acres for tax year 2014 and 


forward based on unrecorded survey.


2013 - $265.56                   


2012 - $264.80               


2011 - $274.93


$805.29 


Westmoreland, Kathi (etal)                                                                                 


Parcel #04-1301-050


2013       


2012                                                               


2011


Commercial


On July 1, 2014 taxpayer came 


in to notify us that our records 


reflected incorrect value for their 


property.


Approve


Parcel 04-1301-050 was created in 2004 


based on a 2003 Warranty Deed that 


excluded this strip of land from he original 


legal description of parcel 04-1301-020 


(neither the buyer nor the seller was aware 


that this portion of land did not transfer with 


parcel 04-1301-020).


The Tax Assessors office created a new 


parcel based on he exclusion in the 


Warranty Deed and assigned to it a 


commercial value. This property was actually 


zoned O&I (Office and Institutional) and, at 


most, should have been valued accordingly.


However, upon a more thorough review (via 


this refund request) the Board of Tax 


Assessors has deemed that this property 


should have been assigned a nominal value 


due to its odd shape, required setbacks, 


negligible size and he considerable 


encroachment by the county road; thus 


rendering this parcel, in its current state, 


unable to qualify for any permits, which would 


allow the owner to perform any structural 


improvements on the property since its 


creation in 2004.


2013 - $174.30


2012 - $173.84


2011 - $195.41


$543.55 


Number of Refund Requests 6


Number of Recommended Approvals 3


Amount Requested $1,348.84


Amount Recommended to Refund $543.55







1


Floyd Jones


Subject: FW: Tax Refund


From: Joel Benton  


Sent: Wednesday, October 01, 2014 11:28 AM 
To: Steve Rapson 


Subject: RE: Tax Refund 


If the value were O&I instead of Commercial or Nominal $500 value:


Tax Year Commercial Value O&I Value Refund Based on O&I Value Refund Based on $500 Value


2013 $14,120 $1,633 $159.80 $174.30


2012 $14,120 $1,633 $159.38 $173.84


2011 $16,000 $1,830 $178.64 $195.41


- - Total Refund $497.82 $543.55


Sincerely, 
 


Joel T. Benton 
Fayette County Board of Assessors 
Chief Appraiser / Director 
Phone: 770.305.5272 
Fax: 770.305.5405 
jbenton@fayettecountyga.gov


  


 
 


 


  


 
 


 





		Tax Assessor- Refund Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessor- Refund Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Water System Director Lee Pope


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award Bid #908- Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fiscal Year 2015 to 


the low bidder, Shockley Plumbing, in an amount not to exceed $489,556.25, and approval to transfer funds from the Renewal & 


Extension Fund to the Water System's Capital Improvement Project Fund.


The Water System must respond to needs for emergency or other non-routine repairs, extensions, or similar work on the water 


distribution system.  To go through a bid or price quote process each time would be inefficient and it would require customers to wait for 


unnecessary periods of time for services.  To address this issue, the County enters into a contract for as-needed services each fiscal 


year.  Since the work tend to be relatively small jobs on as as-needed basis, many of the larger contractors do not submit bids.  It has 


been reported that, for over ten years, only one or two vendors have bid each year.   


 


CH2M Hill and the Purchasing Department worked together to issue invitation to Bid #908 to acquire Water Line Extension Services for 


Fiscal Year 2015.  Notices of the opportunity were direct mailed to 31 vendors.  Another 438 vendors were contacted through the web-


based Georgia Procurement Registry.  Additionally, invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county's website, Georgia Local 


Government Access Marketplace, and Channel 23.  Two vendors submitted bids on 85 items.  Shockley Plumbing was the low bidder of 


the two. 


 


The Water System recommends Shockley Pluming for the Fiscal Year 2015 water line extensions contract, at the not-to-exceed amount 


of $489,556.25.  The Purchasing Department supports this recommendation.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to award Bid #908- Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fiscal Year 2015 to 


the low bidder, Shockley Plumbing, in an amount not to exceed $489,556.25, and approval to transfer funds from the Renewal & 


Extension Fund to the Water System's Capital Improvement Project Fund.


Funding is provided in the Water System Renewal & Extension Fund (50541100-610507.)


Yes Annually


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentTuesday, October 7, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #3







To:   
From:   
Date:   
Subject: 
 
The Wate
similar wo
would be 
services.  
Since the 
not subm
 
CH2M Hil
issue Invit
opportun
based Geo
county we
 
Two vend


 B


 W
al
25


 
Bids were
   


Ke
Sh


 
Shockley 
Fiscal Yea
contracto
 
The Wate
contract, 
 
Attachme


Steve 
Ted L. 
Octob
Water


er System mus
ork on the wa
inefficient, a
To address th
work tends t
it bids.  It has


l, as Water Sy
tation to Bid #
ity to be were
orgia Procure
ebsite, Georg


dors submitte


ase Bid: This 


Weighted Bid:
ll items, a 75%
5% weight.  T


e submitted a
 


emi Construc
hockley Plum


Plumbing wa
r 2013 and 20
or for Fiscal Ye


er System reco
at the not‐to


ent. 


Rapson 
Burgess 
er 7, 2014 
r Line Extensio


st respond to
ater distributi
nd would req
his issue, the 
o be relativel
s been report


ystem Engine
#908 to acqu
e direct‐maile
ement Registr
gia Local Gove


d bids.  Each 


is the sum of


: Because the
% weight is gi
This results in


s follows: 
   


ction Compan
mbing   


s the low bid
014, as well a
ears 2013 and


ommends Sho
‐exceed amo


ons for Fiscal 


o needs for em
ion system.  T
quire some cu
county enter
ly small jobs o
ted that, for o


er of Record,
ire Water Lin
ed to 31 vend
ry.  In additio
ernment Acce


vendor subm


f all items, mu


e probability o
iven to the hi
 bidders prov


ny, Inc.


der of the tw
as the bid pric
d 2014, as we


ockley Plumb
unt of $489.5


Year 2015 


mergency or o
To go through
ustomers to w
rs into a contr
on an as‐need
over ten years


, and the Purc
e Extension S
dors.  Anothe
n, invitations
ess Marketpla


mitted bids on


ultiplied by th


of being need
ghest‐priority
viding their be


    Base Bid
$1,442,150.0
     826,075.0


wo.  A display i
ces for Fiscal Y
ell as the low 


bing for the Fi
556.25.  I sup


other non‐rou
h a bid or pric
wait for unnec
ract for as‐ne
ded basis, ma
s, one or two


chasing Depa
Services for F
r 438 were co
s were extend
ace (www.glg


n 85 items.  Bi


he estimated 


ded during an
y items, while
est prices on 


  W
00     $
00     


is attached th
Year 2015.  S
bidder for Fis


iscal Year 201
port their rec


utine repairs,
ce quote proc
cessary perio
eeded service
any of the larg
 vendors hav


rtment work
iscal Year 201
ontacted thro
ded via the Fa
ga.org), and C


ids are compa


usage of eac


y one year is 
e less‐needed
the highest‐p


Weighted Bid 
$837,262.50 
 489,556.25 


hat shows con
Shockley Plum
scal Year 2015


15 water line 
commendatio


, extensions, 
cess each tim
ods of time fo
es each fiscal y
ger contracto
ve bid each ye


ed together t
15.  Notices o
ough the web
ayette News, 
Channel 23. 


ared in two w


h. 


not the same
d items are gi
priority items


 


ntracted price
mbing was the
5. 


extensions 
on. 


or 
e 
r 
year.  
ors do 
ear. 


to 
of the 
b‐
the 


ways: 


e for 
ven a 
. 


es for 
e 







ATTACHMENT


Est. Bid #908


Unit Qty. FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 2013‐2014 2013‐2015


1 Mobilization ‐ primary Each 10      2,000.00      1,800.00        2,000.00      ‐10% 0%


1A Mobilization ‐ secondary Each 1        3,000.00      1,000.00        2,000.00      ‐67% ‐33%


2 20" Dia class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 100   115.00         110.00          100.00         ‐4% ‐13%


3 16" Dia class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 100   90.00           90.00            85.00           0% ‐6%


4 12" Dia class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 600   40.00           38.00            38.00           ‐5% ‐5%


5 10" Dia class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 600   35.50           33.00            32.00           ‐7% ‐10%


6 8" Dia class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 5,000 27.00           26.00            26.00           ‐4% ‐4%


7 6" Dia class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 600   23.00           21.00            19.00           ‐9% ‐17%


8 D.I. fittings, complete Ton 10      6,400.00      7,000.00        7,000.00      9% 9%


9 Fire hydrant assembly Each 10      2,500.00      3,000.00        2,900.00      20% 16%


10 30" dia steel casing & 20" dia carrier pipe w/ casing spacers


10A Bore and jack L.F. 40      350.00         325.00          340.00         ‐7% ‐3%


10B Placed in open trench L.F. 20      250.00         250.00          250.00         0% 0%


11 24" Dia steel casing & 16'6 dia carrier pipe w/casing spacers


11A Bore and jack L.F. 40      270.00         260.00          280.00         ‐4% 4%


11B Placed in open trench L.F. 20      200.00         190.00          200.00         ‐5% 0%


12 18" Dia steel casing & 12" dia carrier pipe w/casing spacers


12A Bore and jack L.F. 40      240.00         220.00          230.00         ‐8% ‐4%


12B Placed in open trench L.F. 20      170.00         150.00          160.00         ‐12% ‐6%


13 16" Dia steel casing & 10" dia carrier pipe w/casing spacers


13A Bore and jack L.F. 40      200.00         210.00          220.00         5% 10%


13B Placed in open trench L.F. 20      140.00         150.00          160.00         7% 14%


14 14" Dia steel casing & 8" dia carrier pipe w/casing spacers


14A Bore and jack L.F. 200   195.00         190.00          200.00         ‐3% 3%


14B Placed in open trench L.F. 60      140.00         140.00          140.00         0% 0%


15 10" Dia steel casing & 6" dia carrier pipe w/casing spacers


15A Bore and jack L.F. 65      180.00         170.00          160.00         ‐6% ‐11%


15B Placed in open trench L.F. 10 140.00         120.00          110.00         ‐14% ‐21%


16 2"ARV for 20" pipe Each 1        1,200.00      1,100.00        1,000.00      ‐8% ‐17%


17 2" ARV for 16" pipe Each 1        1,200.00      1,100.00        1,000.00      ‐8% ‐17%


18 2" ARV for 12" pipe Each 1        1,000.00      1,000.00        1,000.00      0% 0%


19 2" ARV for 10" pipe Each 1        1,000.00      1,000.00        1,000.00      0% 0%


20 Freebore for 20" dia pipe w/o casing, complete L.F. 60      40.00           60.00            100.00         50% 150%


21 Freebore for 16" dia pipe w/o casing, complete L.F. 60      40.00           60.00            100.00         50% 150%


22 Freebore for 12"dia pipe w/o casing, complete L.F. 60      40.00           60.00            60.00           50% 50%


Item


Percent Change


Water Line Extensions


Unit Price Trends


P:\Ted B\Water Sys\908 Waterline Ext\ Unit Price Trends







ATTACHMENT


Est. Bid #908


Unit Qty. FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 2013‐2014 2013‐2015Item


Percent Change


23 Freebore for 10" dia pipe w/o casing, complete L.F. 60      40.00           60.00            60.00           50% 50%


24 Freebore for 8" dia pipe w/o casing, complete L.F. 500   40.00           50.00            60.00           25% 50%


25 Freebore for 6" dia pipe w/o casing, complete L.F. 100   40.00           50.00            60.00           25% 50%


26 20" dia BFV Gate Valve w/box & valve marker, complete Each 1        Note 2* Note 2* 12,000.00   N/A N/A


27 16" dia BFV w/box & valve marker, complete Each 1        2,500.00      2,200.00        6,000.00      ‐12% 140%


28 12" dia BFV w/box & valve marker, complete Each 3        1,500.00      1,400.00        2,000.00      ‐7% 33%


29 10" dia BFV w/box & valve marker, complete Each 3        1,500.00      1,400.00        1,700.00      ‐7% 13%


30 8" dia BFV w/box & valve marker, complete Each 10      1,200.00      1,200.00        1,200.00      0% 0%


31 6" Dia gate valve w/ box & valver marker, complete Each 1        1,200.00      900.00          900.00         ‐25% ‐25%


32 Clearing, complete Acre 2        2,000.00      1,700.00        1,400.00      ‐15% ‐30%


33 Pavement repair S.Y. 50      40.00           40.00            40.00           0% 0%


34 Trench rock excavation, complete C.Y 100   90.00           100.00          100.00         11% 11%


35 Unsuitable materials, complete C.Y 200   8.00             5.00              20.00           ‐38% 150%


36 3/4" short side SVC tie in Each 10      350.00         380.00          400.00         9% 14%


37 3/4" long side SVC, complete Each 10      600.00         650.00          700.00         8% 17%


38 1" dia short side SVC, complete Each 5        450.00         480.00          550.00         7% 22%


39 1" dia long side SVC, complete Each 10      700.00         750.00          900.00         7% 29%


40 2" short side SVC, complete Each 1        1,400.00      2,000.00        2,000.00      43% 43%


41 2" long side SVC, complete Each 1        2,100.00      2,400.00        3,000.00      14% 43%


42A Grassing, complete Acre 5        1,500.00      2,500.00        3,500.00      67% 133%


42B Sod replacement, complete S.F. 1,000 1.50             1.00              1.50             ‐33% 0%


43 Silt fence, complete L.F. 1,000 3.00             2.00              3.00             ‐33% 0%


44 Ditch check, complete Each 100   40.00           50.00            50.00           25% 25%


45 Rip‐rap, Ga DOT Type III Ton 100   20.00           20.00            25.00           0% 25%


46 Mulch mat, complete S.Y. 2,500 2.00             1.50              1.75             ‐25% ‐13%


47 Concrete encasement, complete C.Y 10      60.00           50.00            50.00           ‐17% ‐17%


48 Concrete thrust blocking, complete C.Y 20      150.00         150.00          160.00         0% 7%


49 Omitted N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


50 Omitted N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


51 Omitted N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


52 20"x10" wet tap, complete Each 1        4,000.00      5,000.00        6,000.00      25% 50%


53 20"x8" wet tap, complete Each 1        4,000.00      5,000.00        6,000.00      25% 50%


54 20"x6" wet tap, complete Each 1        4,000.00      4,000.00        3,000.00      0% ‐25%


55 Omitted N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


56 Omitted N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


57 16"x10" wet tap, complete Each 1        3,500.00      4,000.00        6,000.00      14% 71%


58 16"x8" wet tap, complete Each 1        3,500.00      3,500.00        5,000.00      0% 43%


59 16"x16" wet tap, complete Each 1        3,000.00      3,500.00        2,500.00      17% ‐17%


P:\Ted B\Water Sys\908 Waterline Ext\ Unit Price Trends







ATTACHMENT


Est. Bid #908


Unit Qty. FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 2013‐2014 2013‐2015Item


Percent Change


60 Omitted N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


61 12"x10" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      2,500.00        3,000.00      25% 50%


62 12"x8" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      2,000.00        2,000.00      0% 0%


63 12"x6" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      1,500.00        1,000.00      ‐25% ‐50%


64 10"x10" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      2,500.00        2,000.00      25% 0%


65 10"x8" weet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      2,000.00        2,000.00      0% 0%


66 10"x6" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      1,500.00        1,000.00      ‐25% ‐50%


67 8"x8" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      1,800.00        2,000.00      ‐10% 0%


68 8"x6"wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      1,500.00        1,500.00      ‐25% ‐25%


69 6"x6" wet tap, complete Each 1        2,000.00      1,000.00        1,000.00      ‐50% ‐50%


70 Stabiliz. stone or crusher run for gravel dway repair Ton 200   20.00           25.00            25.00           25% 25%


71 Repair existing waterline w/owner‐provided matls


71A Trackhoe Hour 300   100.00         85.00            105.00         ‐15% 5%


71B Rubber‐tire backhoe Hour 150   50.00           65.00            85.00           30% 70%


71C 5‐man crew Hour 200   150.00         145.00          165.00         ‐3% 10%


71D 3‐man crew Hour 200   100.00         90.00            99.00           ‐10% ‐1%


72 3/4" short side SVC tie into existing waterline Each 20      600.00         500.00          500.00         ‐17% ‐17%


73 3/4" long side SVC tie into existing waterline Each 20      900.00         700.00          700.00         ‐22% ‐22%


74 1" short side SVC tie into existing waterline Each 10      600.00         500.00          600.00         ‐17% 0%


75 1" long side SVC tie into existing waterline Each 10      900.00         700.00          800.00         ‐22% ‐11%


76 Overdepth trench excavation, backfill & compact


76A 6'‐8' trench depth L.F. 500   1.00             1.00              1.00             0% 0%


76B 8'‐10' trench depth L.F. 100   2.00             3.00              3.00             50% 50%


76C 10'‐12' trench depth L.F. 100   3.00             4.00              4.00             33% 33%


76D 12'‐14' trench depth L.F. 100   4.00             5.00              5.00             25% 25%


77 Payment & performance bonds 1        12,000.00   9,000.00        14,000.00   ‐25% 17%


*NOTES:


1) Items highlighted in blue are "high priority" items; that is, items that tend to have a higher probability of being used in any one year.


2: This item was changed from the previously used item, so prices are not comparable.


P:\Ted B\Water Sys\908 Waterline Ext\ Unit Price Trends







CH2M HILL  
6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road 
Embassy Row 400, Suite 600 
Atlanta, GA 30328 
Tel (770) 604-9095 


 


 


September 24, 2014 


 


Lee Pope, Director 
Fayette County Water System 
245 McDonough Road 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
 


Subject: Bid #908 Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fayette County, 2014-2015  
Recommendation of Award 


 


Bid Summary 


CH2M HILL prepared the bid documents, oversaw the Invitation to Bid, attended the bid opening, and has 
reviewed the bid packages submitted for BID #908, ANNUAL CONTRACT FOR WATERLINE EXTENSIONS FOR 
FAYETTE COUNTY, 2014-2015. The project bid documents were posted on Fayette County’s website 
(procurement page), and announced through five separate means, including: 


• Fayette County Vendor List – sending notices directly to all approved vendors, 
• TV 23 local television, 
• Fayette News newspaper, 
• GLGA Marketplace – Georgia local government registry of items for bi, 
• Georgia Procurement Registry – State-managed vendor list. 


Construction bids were received on August 26, 2014. Two contractors submitted bids for this project: Kemi 
Construction Company, Inc. and Shockley Plumbing, Inc. (SHOCKLEY). Each contractor submitted bids that 
complied with the bid document requirements. The total base bid and weight bid for each contractor is 
provided in Table 1: 


TABLE 1 
Summary of Bids 
Bid #908 Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fayette County, 2014-2015 


Contractor Base Bid Weighted Bid 


Kemi Construction Company, Inc.  $  1,442,150.00   $     837,262.50  


Shockley Plumbing, Inc.  $     826,075.00   $     489,556.25  


 
A summary of the bids and required documentation is attached as Table 2. The submitted bid schedule with 
unit prices is attached as Table 3. 


Project References 


Shockley has worked for Fayette County Water System (FAYETTE) in the role of on-call waterline extension 
contractor for the previous three years. Given this active relationship with Fayette, CH2M HILL did not check 
Shockley’s non-Fayette project references. If Fayette would like CH2M HILL to review additional Shockley 
references, please let me know.  


BID#908 FAYETTE W.L EXTENSION - RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 







BID #908 ANNUAL CONTRACT FOR WATERLINE EXTENSIONS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY, 2014-2015  
RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD 
PAGE 2 
SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 


Administrative Requirements 


CH2M HILL has reviewed Shockley bid package and confirmed that they have submitted all documents 
required for a complete bid. A Performance bond, payment bond, and Georgia Security Immigration 
Compliance Act affidavit from Shockley will be required prior to contract execution.  


Old Republic Surety Company (NAIC #40444) was the bid bond surety company; it is assumed that they will 
provide the performance and payment bonds for this project. They are listed in the current U.S. Department 
of Treasure Circular 570, and are shown as being licensed in the State of Georgia with an underwriting 
limitation of $5.2M, an amount greater than the bond amount. CH2M HILL does not make any 
representation as to the solvency of this surety company; however, its inclusion in this circular indicates that 
they are acceptable as surety on Federal Bonds.  


The bid did not take any exceptions to the contract documents. 


Recommendation of Award 


Based upon a review of the bid packages, CH2M HILL recommends that Fayette award the contract to 
Shockley based upon a BASE BID of $826,075.00 and a WEIGHTED BID of $489,556.25. This is a unit-price 
contract for work as required on a project-by-project basis. The total contract amount will be based upon 
the amount of work authorized by Fayette and performed by Shockley during the contract timeframe (July 1, 
2014 – June 20, 2015).  


 


Respectfully, 


CH2M HILL 


 
Alan Bowling, PE 
Project Manager 


 


Attachment: Table 1: Bid Evaluation 
  Table 2: Bid Costs 







 ATL Office
6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road


Embassy Row 400, Suite 600
Atlanta, Georgia 30328


(770) 604-9095


\\peachtree\Proj\FayetteCountyGA\498049WLExtContract\90_Construction\92_Bids\92.2_Evaluations\
Bid#908 Fayette W.L Extension - Bid Evaluation
Summary


Page 3 
Printed: 9/19/2014


Bidder Contact Name
Submit Bid 
by Deadline


Envelope 
Sealed & 


Addressed


Signed by 
Company 


Officer Bid Schedule
Base Bid 
Amount a


Weighted Bid 
Amount


Contractor 
Affidavit b


Letter 
Assuring 


Performance 
Bond c


Letter 
Assuring 
Payment 


Bond d Insurance


Statement of 
Bidder's 


Qualifications


 
Utility 


Contractor's 
License 


Certification


GA Security & 
Immigration 


Compliance Act 
Affidavits e


Kemi Construction Company, Inc.


Rufus Oladapo
Verna Akinpelu attended 
Bid Opening Yes Yes Yes Yes  $  1,442,150.00  $     837,262.50 No Yes 5.00% Yes Yes Yes Yes


UC300571
Issued: 1996


Exp: 
4/30/2015 No


Shockley Plumbing, Inc. R.W. Shockley Yes Yes Yes Yes  $     826,075.00  $     489,556.25 No Yes 5.00% No No -- Yes Yes No


TABLE 2
Bid Evaluation
Bid #908 Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fayette County, 2014-2015 


Notes: 
a See Table 3 for Unit Costs
b Contractor Affidavit - required by Purchasing Department prior to Contract execution
c Letter Assuring Performance Bond - requested by Purchasing Department at Bid stage, as a courtesy to ensure Bidder is able to be bonded. 
d Letter Assuring Payment Bond - requested by Purchasing Department at Bid stage, as a courtesy to ensure Bidder is able to be bonded. 
e GA Securing Immigration Compliance Act Affidavit - required by Purchasing Department prior to Contract execution


Bid Bond







 ATL Office 
6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road


Embassy Row 400, Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30128


(770) 604-9095


\\peachtree\Proj\FayetteCountyGA\498049WLExtContract\90_Construction\92_Bids\92.2_Evaluations\
Bid#908 Fayette W.L Extension - Bid Evaluation
Bid Schedule


Page 4 
Printed: 9/19/2014


Base Bid: 1,442,150$     Weighted Bid: 837,262.50$  Base Bid: 826,075$        Weighted Bid: 489,556$        


No. Item Unit
Est. 


Quantity Unit Price Base Bid Priority Weighted Bid Unit Price Base Bid Priority Weighted Bid


1
Mobilization - Primary
(See Specification Section 01010) EA. 10 2,000.00$                      20,000.00$           High 15,000.00$           2,000.00$                      20,000.00$           High 15,000.00$           


1A
Mobilization - Secondary
(See Specification Section 01010) EA. 1 3,500.00$                      3,500.00$             Low 875.00$                 2,000.00$                      2,000.00$             Low 500.00$                 


2 20" Diameter (Dia.) Class 300 Ductile Iron Pipe (DIP), complete L.F. 100 145.00$                         14,500.00$           Low 3,625.00$             100.00$                         10,000.00$           Low 2,500.00$             
3 16" Dia. Class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 100 130.00$                         13,000.00$           Low 3,250.00$             85.00$                           8,500.00$             Low 2,125.00$             
4 12" Dia. Class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 600 95.00$                           57,000.00$           Low 14,250.00$           38.00$                           22,800.00$           Low 5,700.00$             
5 10" Dia. Class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 600 92.00$                           55,200.00$           High 41,400.00$           32.00$                           19,200.00$           High 14,400.00$           
6 8" Dia. Class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 5000 85.00$                           425,000.00$         High 318,750.00$         26.00$                           130,000.00$         High 97,500.00$           
7 6" Dia. Class 300 DIP, complete L.F. 600 80.00$                           48,000.00$           High 36,000.00$           19.00$                           11,400.00$           High 8,550.00$             


8


D.I. Fittings, complete
including hydrant tees, gaskets & hardware
Weight based on Star Pipe Products Weight Guide, or ENGINEER-approved 
equivalent TON 10.0 100.00$                         1,000.00$             High 750.00$                 7,000.00$                      70,000.00$           High 52,500.00$           


9


Fire Hydrant Assemblies, complete
including 6" gate valve, valve box, hydrant lead pipe, restraining devices, 
concrete & crushed stone EA. 10 4,800.00$                      48,000.00$           High 36,000.00$           2,900.00$                      29,000.00$           High 21,750.00$           


10 30" Dia. Steel Casing & 20" Dia. Carrier Pipe w/Casing Spacers
10A Bore & Jack L.F. 40 450.00$                         18,000.00$           Low 4,500.00$             340.00$                         13,600.00$           Low 3,400.00$             
10B Placed in open trench L.F. 20 320.00$                         6,400.00$             Low 1,600.00$             250.00$                         5,000.00$             Low 1,250.00$             
11 24" Dia. Steel Casing & 16" Dia. Carrier Pipe w/Casing Spacers


11A Bore & Jack L.F. 40 400.00$                         16,000.00$           Low 4,000.00$             280.00$                         11,200.00$           Low 2,800.00$             
11B Placed in open trench L.F. 20 300.00$                         6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             200.00$                         4,000.00$             Low 1,000.00$             
12 16" Dia. Steel Casing & 12" Dia. Carrier Pipe w/Casing Spacers


12A Bore & Jack L.F. 40 300.00$                         12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             230.00$                         9,200.00$             Low 2,300.00$             
12B Placed in open trench L.F. 20 200.00$                         4,000.00$             Low 1,000.00$             160.00$                         3,200.00$             Low 800.00$                 
13 16" Dia. Steel Casing & 10" Dia. Carrier Pipe w/Casing Spacers


13A Bore & Jack L.F. 40 300.00$                         12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             220.00$                         8,800.00$             Low 2,200.00$             
13B Placed in open trench L.F. 20 200.00$                         4,000.00$             Low 1,000.00$             160.00$                         3,200.00$             Low 800.00$                 
14 14" Dia. Steel Casing & 8" Dia. Carrier Pipe w/Casing Spacers


14A Bore & Jack L.F. 200 220.00$                         44,000.00$           High 33,000.00$           200.00$                         40,000.00$           High 30,000.00$           
14B Placed in open trench L.F. 60 170.00$                         10,200.00$           High 7,650.00$             140.00$                         8,400.00$             High 6,300.00$             
15 10" Dia. Steel Casing & 6" Dia. Carrier Pipe w/Casing Spacers


15A Bore & Jack L.F. 65 180.00$                         11,700.00$           Low 2,925.00$             160.00$                         10,400.00$           Low 2,600.00$             
15B Placed in open trench L.F. 10 150.00$                         1,500.00$             Low 375.00$                 110.00$                         1,100.00$             Low 275.00$                 


16


2" Dia. Combination Vacuum/Air Release Valve (C/ARV), complete 
Including saddle tap for, 20" Dia. pipe,  manhole, stone bedding, all 
accessories and clean up EA. 1 8,000.00$                      8,000.00$             Low 2,000.00$             1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


17


2" Dia. C/ARV, complete 
Including saddle tap for, 16" Dia. pipe,  manhole, stone bedding, all 
accessories and clean up EA. 1 7,000.00$                      7,000.00$             Low 1,750.00$             1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


18


2" Dia. C/ARV, complete 
Including saddle tap for, 12" Dia. pipe,  manhole, stone bedding, all 
accessories and clean up EA. 1 7,000.00$                      7,000.00$             Low 1,750.00$             1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


19


2" Dia. C/ARV, complete 
Including saddle tap for, 10" Dia. pipe,  manhole, stone bedding, all 
accessories and clean up EA. 1 7,000.00$                      7,000.00$             Low 1,750.00$             1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


20 Freebore for 20" pipe w/out casing, complete L.F. 60 200.00$                         12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             100.00$                         6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             
21 Freebore for 16" pipe w/out casing, complete L.F. 60 200.00$                         12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             100.00$                         6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             
22 Freebore for 12" pipe w/out casing, complete L.F. 60 150.00$                         9,000.00$             Low 2,250.00$             60.00$                           3,600.00$             Low 900.00$                 
23 Freebore for 10" pipe w/out casing, complete L.F. 60 150.00$                         9,000.00$             Low 2,250.00$             60.00$                           3,600.00$             Low 900.00$                 
24 Freebore for 8" pipe w/out casing, complete L.F. 500 130.00$                         65,000.00$           High 48,750.00$           60.00$                           30,000.00$           High 22,500.00$           
25 Freebore for 6" pipe w/out casing, complete L.F. 100 120.00$                         12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             60.00$                           6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             
26 20" Dia. Butterfly Valve (BFV) w/box & valve marker, complete EA. 1 18,000.00$                    18,000.00$           Low 4,500.00$             12,000.00$                    12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             
27 16" Dia. BFV w/box & valve marker, complete EA. 1 10,000.00$                    10,000.00$           Low 2,500.00$             6,000.00$                      6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             
28 12" Dia. BFV w/box & valve marker, complete EA. 3 3,500.00$                      10,500.00$           Low 2,625.00$             2,000.00$                      6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             
29 10" Dia. BFV w/box & valve marker, complete EA. 3 3,200.00$                      9,600.00$             Low 2,400.00$             1,700.00$                      5,100.00$             Low 1,275.00$             
30 8" Dia. BFV w/box & valve marker, complete EA. 10 2,300.00$                      23,000.00$           High 17,250.00$           1,200.00$                      12,000.00$           High 9,000.00$             
31 6" Dia. Gate Valve (GV) w/box & valve marker, complete EA. 1 1,800.00$                      1,800.00$             High 1,350.00$             900.00$                         900.00$                 High 675.00$                 


32
Clearing, complete
w/burning (if allowed), grinding, haul off and cleanup ACRE 2.0 5,000.00$                      10,000.00$           High 7,500.00$             1,400.00$                      2,800.00$             High 2,100.00$             


33 Pavement Repair S.Y. 50 70.00$                           3,500.00$             High 2,625.00$             40.00$                           2,000.00$             High 1,500.00$             


34
Trench Rock Excavation, complete
including backfill with suitable material C.Y. 100 90.00$                           9,000.00$             High 6,750.00$             100.00$                         10,000.00$           High 7,500.00$             


35
Unsuitable Materials, complete
including backfill with suitable material C.Y. 200 50.00$                           10,000.00$           High 7,500.00$             20.00$                           4,000.00$             High 3,000.00$             


36


3/4" Short-Side service tie-ins,
including copper service pipe, meter box, & all misc. hardware
(Owner to provide 3/4" meter & backflow preventor) EA. 10 900.00$                         9,000.00$             High 6,750.00$             400.00$                         4,000.00$             High 3,000.00$             


37
3/4" Long-Side service tie-ins, complete
as described in Item 36, including road bore EA. 10 1,100.00$                      11,000.00$           High 8,250.00$             700.00$                         7,000.00$             High 5,250.00$             


38
1" Short-Side Service Tie in, complete, 
as described in Item 36 EA. 5 950.00$                         4,750.00$             High 3,562.50$             550.00$                         2,750.00$             High 2,062.50$             


39
1" Long-Side service tie-ins, complete
as described in Item 36, including road bore EA. 10 1,200.00$                      12,000.00$           High 9,000.00$             900.00$                         9,000.00$             High 6,750.00$             


40
2" Short-Side Service Tie in, complete, 
as described in Item 36 EA. 1 1,200.00$                      1,200.00$             Low 300.00$                 2,000.00$                      2,000.00$             Low 500.00$                 


41
2" Long-Side service tie-ins, complete
as described in Item 36, including road bore EA. 1 1,500.00$                      1,500.00$             Low 375.00$                 3,000.00$                      3,000.00$             Low 750.00$                 


42A
Grassing (DS3), complete
including maintenance and temporary grassing (DS2) ACRE 5 1,200.00$                      6,000.00$             High 4,500.00$             3,500.00$                      17,500.00$           High 13,125.00$           


42B Sod Replacement (DS4), complete S.F. 1000 2.00$                             2,000.00$             High 1,500.00$             1.50$                             1,500.00$             High 1,125.00$             
43 Silt Fence (Sd1), complete L.F. 1000 4.00$                             4,000.00$             High 3,000.00$             3.00$                             3,000.00$             High 2,250.00$             
44 Ditch Checks (Cd), complete EA. 100 150.00$                         15,000.00$           High 11,250.00$           50.00$                           5,000.00$             High 3,750.00$             
45 Rip-Rap (St), GDOT Type 3 TON 100 50.00$                           5,000.00$             High 3,750.00$             25.00$                           2,500.00$             High 1,875.00$             
46 Mulch Mat (Ss), complete S.Y. 2500 1.00$                             2,500.00$             High 1,875.00$             1.75$                             4,375.00$             High 3,281.25$             
47 Concrete Encasement, complete C.Y. 10 250.00$                         2,500.00$             High 1,875.00$             50.00$                           500.00$                 High 375.00$                 
48 Concrete Thrust Blocking, complete C.Y. 20 200.00$                         4,000.00$             High 3,000.00$             160.00$                         3,200.00$             High 2,400.00$             
49 Omitted n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
50 Omitted n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
51 Omitted n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


52
20" x 10" Wet Tap, complete
w/tapping sleeve, 10" GV and all misc. hardware EA. 1 12,000.00$                    12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             6,000.00$                      6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             


53
20" x 8" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/8" GV EA. 1 12,000.00$                    12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             6,000.00$                      6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             


54
20" x 6" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/6" GV EA. 1 12,000.00$                    12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             3,000.00$                      3,000.00$             Low 750.00$                 


55 Omitted n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
56 Omitted n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


57
16" x 10" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/10" GV EA. 1 10,500.00$                    10,500.00$           Low 2,625.00$             6,000.00$                      6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             


58
16" x 8" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/8" GV EA. 1 10,500.00$                    10,500.00$           Low 2,625.00$             5,000.00$                      5,000.00$             Low 1,250.00$             


Bidder Kemi Construction Company, Inc. Shockley Plumbing, Inc.


TABLE 3
Bid Schedule
Bid #908 Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fayette County, 2014-2015 







 ATL Office 
6600 Peachtree Dunwoody Road


Embassy Row 400, Suite 600
Atlanta, GA 30128


(770) 604-9095


\\peachtree\Proj\FayetteCountyGA\498049WLExtContract\90_Construction\92_Bids\92.2_Evaluations\
Bid#908 Fayette W.L Extension - Bid Evaluation
Bid Schedule


Page 5 
Printed: 9/19/2014


Base Bid: 1,442,150$     Weighted Bid: 837,262.50$  Base Bid: 826,075$        Weighted Bid: 489,556$        


No. Item Unit
Est. 


Quantity Unit Price Base Bid Priority Weighted Bid Unit Price Base Bid Priority Weighted Bid


Bidder Kemi Construction Company, Inc. Shockley Plumbing, Inc.


TABLE 3
Bid Schedule
Bid #908 Annual Contract for Waterline Extensions for Fayette County, 2014-2015 


59
16" x 6" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/6" GV EA. 1 10,000.00$                    10,000.00$           Low 2,500.00$             2,500.00$                      2,500.00$             Low 625.00$                 


60 Omitted n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a


61
12" x 10" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/10" GV EA. 1 5,500.00$                      5,500.00$             Low 1,375.00$             3,000.00$                      3,000.00$             Low 750.00$                 


62
12" x 8" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/8" GV EA. 1 5,200.00$                      5,200.00$             Low 1,300.00$             2,000.00$                      2,000.00$             Low 500.00$                 


63
12" x 6" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/6" GV EA. 1 5,000.00$                      5,000.00$             Low 1,250.00$             1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


64
10" x 10" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/10" GV EA. 1 5,000.00$                      4,800.00$             Low 1,200.00$             2,000.00$                      2,000.00$             Low 500.00$                 


65
10" x 8" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/8" GV EA. 1 4,800.00$                      4,800.00$             Low 1,200.00$             2,000.00$                      2,000.00$             Low 500.00$                 


66
10" x 6" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/6" GV EA. 1 4,800.00$                      4,500.00$             Low 1,125.00$             1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


67
8" x 8" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/8" GV EA. 1 4,500.00$                      4,000.00$             Low 1,000.00$             2,000.00$                      2,000.00$             Low 500.00$                 


68
8" x 6" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/8" GV EA. 1 4,000.00$                      4,000.00$             Low 1,000.00$             1,500.00$                      1,500.00$             Low 375.00$                 


69
6" x 6" Wet Tap, complete
as described in Item 52, w/6" GV EA. 1 3,500.00$                      3,500.00$             Low 875.00$                 1,000.00$                      1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 


70
Stabilization Stone or Crusher Run
for gravel driveway repair TON 200 25.00$                           5,000.00$             High 3,750.00$             25.00$                           5,000.00$             High 3,750.00$             


71
REPAIR OF EXISTING WATERLINE W/OWNER PROVIDED MATERIALS
INCLUDING TRAVEL TIME TO AND FROM SITE


71A Trackhoe HOUR 300 70.00$                           21,000.00$           High 15,750.00$           105.00$                         31,500.00$           High 23,625.00$           
71B Rubber Tire Backhoe HOUR 150 40.00$                           6,000.00$             High 4,500.00$             85.00$                           12,750.00$           High 9,562.50$             
71C 5 Man Crew HOUR 200 150.00$                         30,000.00$           High 22,500.00$           165.00$                         33,000.00$           High 24,750.00$           
71D 3 Man Crew HOUR 200 100.00$                         20,000.00$           High 15,000.00$           99.00$                           19,800.00$           High 14,850.00$           


72


3/4" Short-Side service tie-in to existing waterline
(outside limits of any project being installed), complete
as described in Item 36 EA. 20 900.00$                         18,000.00$           Low 4,500.00$             500.00$                         10,000.00$           Low 2,500.00$             


73


3/4" Long-Side service tie-in to existing waterline
(outside limits of any project being installed), complete
as described in Item 36, including road bore EA. 20 1,100.00$                      22,000.00$           Low 5,500.00$             700.00$                         14,000.00$           Low 3,500.00$             


74


1" Short-Side service tie-in to existing waterline
(outside limits of any project being installed), complete
as described in Item 36 EA. 10 950.00$                         9,500.00$             Low 2,375.00$             600.00$                         6,000.00$             Low 1,500.00$             


75


1" Long-Side service tie-in to existing waterline
(outside limits of any project being installed), complete
as described in Item 36, including road bore EA. 10 1,200.00$                      12,000.00$           Low 3,000.00$             800.00$                         8,000.00$             Low 2,000.00$             


76
OVERDEPTH TRENCH EXCAVATION, BACKFILL & COMPACTION
FOR WATERMAIN INSTALLATIONS DEEPER THAN SIX FEET (6')


76A 6' - 8' Trench Depth L.F. 500 5.00$                             2,500.00$             Low 625.00$                 1.00$                             500.00$                 Low 125.00$                 
76B 8' - 10' Trench Depth L.F. 100 10.00$                           1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 3.00$                             300.00$                 Low 75.00$                   
76C 10' - 12' Trench Depth L.F. 100 10.00$                           1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 4.00$                             400.00$                 Low 100.00$                 
76D 12' - 14' Trench Depth L.F. 100 10.00$                           1,000.00$             Low 250.00$                 5.00$                             500.00$                 Low 125.00$                 
77 Payment & Performance Bonds L.S. L.S. 20,000.00$                    20,000.00$           High 15,000.00$           14,000.00$                    14,000.00$           High 10,500.00$           





		Water- Bid #908 Waterline Extension Agenda Request File

		Water- Bid #908 Waterline Extension Backup

		Water- Bid #913 Chemical System and Actuator Backup-1

		Bid 908 Annual Waterline Contract - Purchasing Backup 1

		Bid 908 Annual Waterline Contract - Purchasing Backup 2

		Water- Annual Waterline Contract Backup-1

		Bid#908 Fayette W.L Extension - Recommendation of Award

		#1 Bid#908 Fayette W L Extension - Recommendation of Award (3)

		Bid#908 Fayette W.L Extension - Bid Evaluation Tables 2 & 3.pdf

		Summary

		Bid Schedule



		Bid#908 Fayette W.L Extension - Bid Evaluation Tables 2 & 3.pdf

		Summary

		Bid Schedule









		Water- Bid #913 Chemical System and Actuator Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Water System Water System Director Lee Pope


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation of the Georgia Military College waterline agreement, and authorization for the 


County to pay a $438,530.00 variance cost, utilizing the Water System's Renewal & Extension Fund, should the County determine that a 


larger diameter water line be installed for future county purposes.


Staff is seeking approval for Fayette County and Georgia Military College (represented by Halbert Development, Inc-- the duly appointed 


authority for Georgia Military College) to enter into the Georgia Military College Water Line Agreement.  The proposed agreement calls 


for an 8" diameter waterline to be placed in County-owned right-of-way along Veterans Parkway to provide potable water to the location.  


Georgia Military College and water staff have determined that an 8" diameter water line is sufficient for its needs. 


 


Fayette County has future plans for water distribution in the area of Georgia Military College thereby causing the County to upgrade the 


8" diameter to a 16" diameter water line. The County has determined that a larger diameter water line needs to be installed to meet future 


capacity, enhanced infrastructure and provide Piedmont Hospital a secondary loop line.  


 


The Georgia Military College will install the 16" diameter water line along the right of way as detailed in the agreement with certain 


responsibilities being met by the County.  Georgia Military College agrees to reimburse the County for the cost of the county's 


responsibility.  The Water System would pay $438,530 towards this project which is the difference between the 16” line and the 8” line.  


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation of the Georgia Military College waterline agreement, and authorization for the 


County to pay a $438,530.00 variance cost, utilizing the Water System's Renewal & Extension Fund, should the County determine that a 


larger diameter water line be installed for future county purposes.


Funding for this project will be provided from a transfer of $438,530 from the Water System Renewal & Extension Fund for this project.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This agreement provides a long-term solution for the expected development bordering Pinewood Studios; water access for Georgia 


Military College and a redundant water line loop for Piedmont Hospital.  


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 New Business



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #9







1 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


GEORGIA MILITARY COLLEGE WATER LINE AGREEMENT 


 THIS AGREEMENT entered into this ____ day of ________________, 2014 by and 


between Fayette County, Georgia, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, acting by and 


through its Board of Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “COUNTY”, and Georgia 


Military College, a not for profit corporation duly organized in the State of Georgia, acting by 


and through Halbert Development, Inc, hereinafter referred to as “GMC”, for the purpose of 


installing a waterline within the right-of-way owned by the COUNTY, hereinafter referred to as 


the “AGREEMENT”. 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is the governing authority of the COUNTY; 


and 


 WHEREAS, the Halbert Development, Inc. is the duly appointed authority for GMC; and 


 WHEREAS, COUNTY and GMC desire to enter into an agreement for the purpose of 


causing a waterline to be installed thereby connecting GMC with potable water from the 


COUNTY; and 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the COUNTY and Halbert Development, 


Inc. of GMC are each clothed with sufficient authority to enter into this AGREEMENT. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein, 


and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 


acknowledged by the COUNTY and GMC, the COUNTY and GMC hereby agree as follows: 


 







2 


 


1. 


 GMC has determined that it requires the installation of an eight (8)-inch water line in 


order to receive an adequate quantity of potable water for its campus located on Veterans’ 


Parkway.  The COUNTY owns sufficient right-of-way along Veterans’ Parkway to allow for the 


installation of the aforementioned eight (8)-inch water line. 


2. 


 The COUNTY has future plans for water distribution in the area of GMC thereby causing 


the COUNTY to determine whether a water line of greater than eight (8) inches should be 


installed to GMC.  Should the COUNTY determine a larger diameter water line needs to be 


installed for its purposes, the COUNTY agrees to pay for the difference for the installation of the 


larger diameter water line.  A list of costs for the installation of an eight (8)-inch water line and a 


sixteen (16)-inch water line is attached as Exhibit “A” to this Agreement, with said exhibit 


incorporated herein by this reference.  Exhibit “A” also contains the route of the water line. 


3. 


 GMC agrees it will install the agreed-upon diameter water line along the right-of-way of 


Veterans’ Parkway in the following manner: 


a. GMC shall employ a licensed contractor in the State of Georgia to install the 


water line; 


b. Installation of the water line shall comply with Fayette County Water System 


standards, a copy of which is available through the Fayette County Water System; 


c. The COUNTY will be responsible for inspection and general oversight of the 


water line installation, hereinafter the “COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES”; and 







3 


 


d. All modifications made to COUNTY-approved plans must be approved by the 


COUNTY’s Engineer of Record for the Fayette County Water System. 


4. 


 GMC has had an opportunity to review the area identified for the installation of the water 


line.  GMC understands that, during the installation process, GMC may encounter unsuitable 


soils. For the purposes of this Agreement, “unsuitable soils” shall mean those soils that cannot be 


compacted in an embankment or backfill or those soils that, where excavated to finished grade, 


result in unstable material.  GMC agrees it will take all necessary action to remove unsuitable 


soils and replace said soils with sufficient soils which will provide for a stabilized finished grade. 


5. 


 The COUNTY shall determine the cost of the expenses borne through the COUNTY 


RESPONSBILITIES.  GMC agrees to reimburse the COUNTY for the cost of the COUNTY 


RESPONSIBILITIES.  The COUNTY shall provide adequate documentation to GMC justifying 


the amount requested for the COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES.  


6. 


 This AGREEMENT represents the entire agreement between the COUNTY  and GMC.  


This AGREEMENT supersedes all other agreements, verbal or written, between the COUNTY 


and GMC. 


7. 


 Time is of the essence for this AGREEMENT. 







4 


 


8. 


 This AGREEMENT shall be construed under the laws of the State of Georgia with venue 


for any dispute to occur in a court of competent jurisdiction in Fayette County, Georgia. 


 WHEREFORE the COUNTY and GMC have hereunto set their hands and their seals on 


the date first above written. 


       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


       FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


(SEAL) 


 


       By:_________________________________ 


        STEVE BROWN, Chairman 


ATTEST: 


 


 


___________________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


       GEORGIA MILITARY COLLEGE 


 


(SEAL) 


 


       By:_________________________________ 


         


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







5 


 


Georgia Military College Waterline Agreement 


Exhibit A 


Waterline Size 


Org. Point 


6,600’ of 


8"DIP 


6,600’ of 


16"DIP Variance
1
 


Intersection 


of Sandy 


Creek Road 


and Veteran’s 


Parkway. $291,660  $730,190  $438,530  


1County contribution of $438,530 will be paid as a percent of completion 


 


 







6 


 


 





		Water- GMC Waterline Agreement Agenda Request File

		Water- GMC Waterline Agreement Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Type of Request:


Water System Water System Director Lee Pope


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow informational material pertaining to Citizen Self Serve and a flyer from The 


Frederick Brown Jr. Amphitheater to be be inserted in customers' water bills, and approval of staff's request for general authorization for 


similar material to be inserted into water bills if approved by the Water Committee including the Administrator, Chairman, and Attorney.


The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater will host Lisa Kelly "The Voice of Ireland" for a Celtic Christmas Concert.  This concert will take 


place on December 13, 2014 with gates opening at 3:00 p.m.  The Water Committee has recommended approval to allow for a flyer to be 


inserted into water customers' November water bills informing them of this event.  A draft copy of the insert is provided (Exhibit A).  


Similarly, staff is requesting Board approval to place an informational letter in customers' October water bills informing citizens of "Citizen 


Self Serve" (Exhibit B.) 


 


Historically, inserts and flyers are reviewed and approved by Fayette County's Water Committee and those recommendations are 


forwarded to the Board of Commissioners in order to obtain formal approval to place the material in water customers' bills.  This 


methodology involves items coming to the Board on a case-by-case basis with the Board of Commissioners routinely mirroring the 


recommendations of the Water Committee.   


 


To promote efficiency, staff is requesting general authorization allowing for the insertion of flyers and informational based upon approval 


of the Water Committee and reviews by the County Administrator, County Chairman, County Attorney or their designees.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow informational material pertaining to Citizen Self Serve and a flyer from The 


Frederick Brown Jr. Amphitheater to be be inserted in customers' water bills, and approval of staff's request for general authorization for 


similar material to be inserted into water bills if approved by the Water Committee including the Administrator, Chairman, and Attorney.


The cost for this request is budgeted in the Water System's budget.  The only cost will be for paper and toner required to print the letters.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Tuesday, October 7, 2014 Consent



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #4







EXHIBIT AEXHIBIT AT A







 
 


 


 


Dear Customer:  


 


The Fayette County Water System is now pleased to offer customers the ability to view billing 


information online through citizen self-serve. With secure Internet access customers will be able 


to look up their Fayette County Water System billing information anytime and from anywhere. 


Citizen self-serve allows customers to view a range of billing information online, including water 


and stormwater, current balance, bill images, payment history, consumption history and submit a 


variety of service requests. Also available for your convenience you may make a payment 


anytime using Paymentus Corporation, a third party automated payment service that accepts Visa, 


MasterCard, Discover and Electronic Check. To use citizen self-serve, you must register and 


create a user account at https://fayette.munisselfservice.com/citizens.  


We trust this will provide you with a new, higher-level of service that makes living and working 


in our community a more enjoyable experience. 


Ready to Go Paperless! 
Getting your bill online is convenient and environmentally friendly. 


We are pleased to invite you to sign up to receive your monthly billing by email. To receive your 


bill by email, please fill out the information below and include it with your next payment in the 


return envelope provided; mail it to: Fayette County Water System, P.O. Box 190, Fayetteville, GA 


30214 or you may email us at water@fayettecountyga.gov before your next billing date. After you 


sign up for e-bill, your next bill will be delivered to your email inbox and paper bills will stop.  


Customer Name   


Account Number   


Email Address   


 


Date created: 09/19/2014 


EXHIBIT B


Getting your bill online is convenient and environmentally friendly. 


We are pleased to invite you to sign up to receive your monthly billing by email. To receive your 


bill by email, please fill out the information below and include it with your next payment in the 


return envelope provided; mail it to: Fayette County Water System, P.O. Box 190, Fayetteville, GA 


30214 or you may email us at water@fayettecountyga.gov before your next billing date. After you 


sign up for e-bill, your next bill will be delivered to your email inbox and paper bills will stop.  


Customer Name 


Account Number 


Email Address 


Date created: 09/19/2014 


EXHIBIT BEXHIBIT B





		Water- Inserts Agenda Request File

		Water- Inserts Backup







